DEVE;
o Wzg,
~§°\ % @/

J BD ANNUALE
REPORT &



2019-2020

MISSION STATEMENT

“To pursue developmental policies that foster sustainable modernisation
and growth in the productive sector, effective modernisation of the
business environment, cost-effective delivery of technical and marketing
services through highly committed, competent and motivated
employees.”



2019-2020

CORPORATE PROFILE

The Jamaica Business Development Corporation (JBDC) was established in 2001 as the premier
government agency providing business development services to Jamaican Micro, Small and
Medium-sized Enterprises (MSMEs)...'"From Concept to Market’. JBDC provides guidance for
business start-ups and expansion, offering business advice and consultation, research services,
business monitoring, fraining and capacity building, project management services, financial
advice, design and product development as well as market penetration support and access. The
organisation which operates within the ambit of the Ministry of Industry, Commerce, Agriculture
and Fisheries (MICAF), strives to continually fuel the local economy through its services and
programmes designed to support the growth and development of the MSME sector.

The JBDC operates from corporate offices in Kingston and satellite locations in Manchester,
Montego Bay, Westmoreland and St. Ann. The locations form part of the Small Business Development
Centre Network (SBDC). Technical support and incubation services for start-ups and established
businesses are facilitated through the organisation’s Incubator and Resource Cenftre (IRC) located
on Marcus Garvey Drive in Kingston. At this location, enterprises in the food processing and food
service, fashion and accessories, and gift & craft sectors secure access to specialised technical
services and utilise the IRC's incubator equipment and office facilities as extended support for the
creation and manufacture of their product lines. Qualified designers and industrial engineers who
constitute a vital part of JBDC's team of professionals are integral to the organisation’s delivery
of technical support services to its clients, in a range of areas such as graphic design, label and
packaging design, product concept development, prototyping and packaging. Advice to new
business owners in factory layout, production systems planning, energy management and other
aspects vital to the creation of sustainable operations is guided by the latest industry specific
research and global quality standards.

JBDC's marketing support services encompass activities which are divided into two (2) major sub-
categories: Developmental and Operational (Things Jamaican™ Retail Chain). These activities
include value chain development, coaching, consultation, trade & events promotion, product
review, analysis & testing, marketing fraining, project implementation, as well as, market access
support which includes retailing opportunities that aim to promote and build “Brand Jamaica”.
JBDC has remained commifted to the development and promotion of authentic Jamaican
products, including handicrafts, eclectic gift lines, specialty foods and spa products, through
its unifying ‘things Jamaican’ umbrella brand, showcasing and retailing the best and highest
quality products which Jamaica has to offer. JBDC is one of the largest purchasers, distributors
and promoters of authentic Jamaican products, currently marketing brands for over 400 active
suppliers islandwide. Its Things Jamaican™ stores are housed at the Norman Manley International
Airport, the historic Devon House and JBDC's Corporate Offices, and may also be found online at
the e-commerce site, www.thingsjamaicanshopping.com.

JBDC enjoys long-standing and successful relationships with a range of international and local
funding agencies through which it has secured critical support in tandem with participation from
the Government of Jamaica for the implementation of innovative and far-reaching business
development programmes on a national scale. Strategic partnerships, including several Public
Private Partnerships (PPP) are fundamental to JBDC's approach to fostering collaboration and
cooperative arrangements between government agencies, the private sector as well academia
and research communifies.

For more information:

Call: 1(876) 928-5161-5/Toll Free: 1-888-232-4357
Websites: www.jbdc.net and www.thingsjamaicanshopping.com

Email:._info@jbdc.net
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MINISTER'S MESSAGE

The Micro, Small & Medium-sized Enterprise (MSME)
sector is a significant programme within the Ministry of
Industry, Commerce, Agriculture & Fisheries (MICAF),
given that it accounts for approximately 80% of jobs in
the Jamaican economy. Therefore, the Government of
Jamaica recognises the support provided by agencies
like the Jamaica Business Development Corporation
(JBDC), as pivotal to economic growth.

Entrepreneurs within the sector face several challenges
including marketing, which s crucial to the development
and profitability of their businesses. The Ministry is
commifted fo enabling the JBDC to make a positive
impactontheirdevelopment andimportantly, toreduce
their failure rate. In August 2019, the Ministry launched
a MSME Digitisation Plan in collaboration with Kolau, a
partner of Google as well as with the Organisation of
American States (OAS). The aim is to have 25,000 MSMEs
operating in the digital marketplace by 2022 at no cost fo them. We are confident that a dynamic
website will increase their online visibility as well as facilitate e-commerce.

Towards the end of the 2019-2020 fiscal year in March, Jamaica was hit by the global covid-19
pandemic and entrepreneurs within the MSME sector who were not already doing business online
were severely affected. Those within the cultural & creative industries immediately felt the brunt of
the crisis. As we continue to navigate the covid-19 pandemic, their ability to pivot will be crucial
to the survival and growth of their businesses. We are pleased that the JBDC launched its Things
Jamaican E-commerce platform ahead of the pandemic, as it will aid the marketing and sales of
products made by entrepreneurs in the gift & craft sector.

The Ministry commends the JBDC on the sterling work done on highlighting the cultural & creative
industries throughout the fiscal year. It provided a framework for further development of the
sector. The Ministry looks forward to the results of the Mapping of the Jamaica Cultural & Creative
Industries being undertaken by the JBDC in collaboration with the British Council. This is a historic
initiative and | laud the JBDC for its continuous efforts to implement groundbreaking initiatives to
develop the MSME sector.

Honourable Audley Shaw, CD, MP
Minister of Industry, Commerce, Agriculture & Fisheries
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

The Board of Directors of the Jamaica Business
Development Corporation (JBDC) iskeen on economic
growth within the MSME sector through the provision
of business development services that facilitate
innovationand provide marketaccessto entrepreneurs
in keeping with global trade developments. In this
regard, keyimpactindicatorsinclude the growthinnew
products, market penetration and internationalisation.
As such, a strategy which focuses largely on enterprise
level development, ecosystem development, project
implementation and internal capacity building is
significant to achieving success.

During the 2019-2020 fiscal year, the agency launched
its new Things Jamaican™ E-commerce platform
which aims to give market access to 423 active clients
with more than 2000 active products. The website is
aimed at delivering a world class, authentic Jamaican
shopping experience across eight (8) major product
categories.

Of note is the category Fi WiTings, which features JBDC
branded lines to promote micro firms through collective branding, clustering and value chain
development projects. This enables the firms to benefit from development partnerships under
brands developed and supported by JBDC offering product development and technical support
that enable the movement ‘From Concept to Market’ for clients who may otherwise not have
been able to develop these products on their own. The brands currently featured are Jamaica
Harvest (Gluten Free and agro processed products) and Irie Magic (casual fashion and souvenirs),
with other brands to be launched over the next two years.

As the JBDC continues to strengthen its own capacity to provide technical assistance to producers
in the agro-processing sector, the agency has submitted a proposal for funding to the Caribbean
Development Bank (CDB) under the European Development Fund Standby Facility for Capacity
Building Programme. In response to growing interest from innovators, the JBDC has requested
funding for the establishment of an agro-processing cluster, renovations to its food technology
incubator, as well as installation of equipment to facilitate appropriate testing, packaging and
labelling of products to meet the technical barrier to trade and sanitary and phytosanitary
requirements of cross-border trade.

The Board of Directors congratulates the JBDC team on its ongoing commitment to the
development of the MSME sector through these and other initiatives designed to stimulate
innovation and growth.

Cleveland Stewart
Chairman
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
S

Cleveland Stewart Matthew Samuda  Valerie Veira, CD, JP
Deputy Chairman C.E.O. & Director

Chairman

Yvonne Davis Hugh Johnson Keisha Lewis Steven Fong-Yee
Director Director Director Director

Oral Shaw Dr. William Lawrence Donovan Wignall Adonia Chin
Director Director Director Director
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BOARD SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS
OVERVIEW

The Corporation is governed by a Board of Directors appointed by the portfolio Minister. A totall
of eleven (11) members served during the period under review.

ADMINISTRATION & PROJECTS

The Administration sub-committee of the JBDC Board was established with a view to assist and
guide on a range of issues related to the management and administration of the company.
Specific areas of responsibility are Marketing, Public Relations and Human Resources.

The Administration sub-committee also assists in the process of developing and maintaining a
positive and viable image for the organisation and ensuring that information on the programmes
and services provided by the organisation is circulated to the widest and most relevant audi-
ence.

During the Fiscal Year, the committee oversaw several projects which included the organisa-
tion’s partnership with the British Council to conduct a mapping of the Jamaica cultural and
creative industries. Other major activities that the Committee oversaw included the staging of
the organisation’s 3rd annual Employee Engagement Conference which resulted in JBDC being
awarded contracts to conduct employee engagement surveys for several entities.

The members of the sub-committee were:
Adonia Chin (Chairperson)

Yvonne Davis

Hugh Johnson

Keisha Lewis

Valerie Veira

AUDIT

The Audit Sub-committee of the JBDC Board is established as an oversight committee that advises
the Board on the extent fo which the objectives of the JBDC are being met. Importantly, the sub-
committee provides advice and support as it relates to the adequacy, efficiency and effectiveness
of the Accounting and Internal control structure and systems of the JBDC.

Among its duties are: reviewing and advising the Board on the Financial Statements that are to
be included in the annual report, review and advise the Board on the annual Auditor’s report,
oversee internal audits of the organisation and ensure compliance with all statutory and regulatory
guidelines as required by the Government of Jamaica.

The members of the sub-committee include:
Yvonne Davis (Chairperson)

Matthew Samuda

Oral Shaw

Valerie Veira
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FINANCE

The Finance sub-committee of the JBDC Board is established to review the financial system of the
JBDC and provide guidance and support as required. Its duties include: ensuring that the legal
and Government of Jamaica regulations are adhered to, guide and ensure that financial reports
are prepared and presented in a timely manner and that said reports are prepared within the
framework of the established and required professional standards.

The committee provided oversight thus ensuring that the organisation complied with the requisite
guidelines and statutory requirements. Prudent financial management continued to be a priority
for the committee, and the organisation was confinually reminded of this.

The members of the sub-committee include:
Williom Lawrence (Chairman)

Hugh Johnson

Stephen Fong-Yee

Donovan Wignall

Keisha Lewis

Valerie Veira
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM

The JBDC is led by an Executive Management Team. The team comprises a Chief Executive Officer
and a Deputy Chief Executive Officer to whom a team of 10 managers and 1 director report. The
single Director oversees operations of the Incubator & Resource Centre, while the managers lead
various teams and initiatives in 5 core service departments and 5 support departments.

The core service departments include Technical Services, Marketing Services, Business Advisory
Services, Financial Support Services and Project Management & Research. Together, they ensure
that JBDC remains the leading business development service provider, delivering ‘From Conceptto
Market'. They achieve their goals through strong support from Finance, Administration, Corporate
Communications, Information Technology and Human Resource Management & Development.

Y =k

Valerie Veira, CD, JP Harold Davis, JP
Chief Executive Officer Deputy Chief Executive Officer



2019-2020

SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

Melissa Bennett Ann-Marie Brown Suzette Campbell Michele Cowan
Manager Manager Manager Manager, Finance
Financial Support Services Administration Corporate Communications

Tl

Janine Fletcher-Taylor Neville Grant David Harrison Patricia Kitson
Manager Manager Director Manager
Marketing Services Information Technology Incubator & Resource Centre Human Resource
Management

& Development

Colin Porter Lisa Taylor-Stone Althea West-Myers
Manager Manager Manager
Technical Services Unit Project Management Business Advisory Services
& Research
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The 2019-2020 fiscal year was a monumental one
as the Jamaica Business Development Corporation
(JBDC) boldly took on a historic focus on the local
Orange Economy - the cultural and creative
industries. The timing was ripe, as by the end of
March 2020, these industries were thrust intfo the most
challenging time of their existence with the onset of
the covid-19 pandemic which brought them to a
halt amidst restrictions like social distancing.

The agency's focus on the cultural and creative
industries began at the staging of the 12th Annual
Small Business Expo & Conference in May 2019 under
the theme, Monetising the Orange Economy: The
Future is Creative. Immediately following the Expo,
the JBDC signed an Operation Alliance Agreement
with the British Council to gather important data
on the Creative and Cultural Industries (CCl) in
Jamaica. Initially focusing on nine categories in the
Creative & Cultural Industries, the objective of the
mapping exercise is to define the creative economy
substantively and provide a guide for MSMEs within
the industries to become investment ready. The
mapping process will also seek to calculate the
contribution of the creative economy to the wider
economy and idenfify ways in which the JBDC can
support the industry going forward.

Officially titled ‘Mapping the Cultural and Creative
Industries in Jamaica’, the information captured will
review and update existing strategies and action
plans for the development of CCls in Jamaica as
the first step towards a comprehensive mapping
exercise. The nine categories to be studied include:
Music & Enterfainment Industry, Architecture &
Design, Art & Craft, Film & Animation, Performing
Arts & Theatre, Fashion, Culinary, Sports and Tools of
Trade & Equipment. It is expected that additional
industry categories will be included later in the
process. The survey which began in January 2020 is
being conducted by international consulting firm,
Nordicity.
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As we are currently under the Ministry of Industry, Commerce, Agriculture and Fisheries (MICAF),
we took advantage of the opportunity to explore the linkages between the Orange Economy
and the Green Economy at the Denbigh Agricultural, Industrial & Food show by featuring
innovative products in food, wellness and craft mainly derived from mango, castor beans,
coconut, bamboo and cannabis. These products were developed by JBDC clients and drew the
attention of hundreds of patrons and dignitaries.

We are also delighted that Cabinet has approved the National Craft Policy which aims to
streamline the Jamaican Craft industry by facilitating incremental and significant improvements
in quality, variety, value, sales, customer satisfaction and profits in order to promote greater
local identity of finished craft and souvenirs, innovation, better supply capability, packaging.
regulation and production and distribution facilities. It is important to note that culture is the real
raw material and our craft producers have been the protectors of the cradle of culture. We are
therefore eagerly anticipating the implementation phase in the coming fiscal year.

The JBDC also officially launched the Things Jamaican™ E-Commerce Platform. The website
seeks to promote the concept of brand Jamaica through the lens of the cultural influences such
as our music, food, hidden gems and attractions all which are franslated into the products our
artisans and producers create. There are currently 423 active clients with 2192 active products in
the Things Jamaican™ client base. The website currently features 61 active clients with 169 active
products plus 2 clusters.

It was the year for creativity and culture in a country which has demonstrated its prowess in both
areas. | look forward to forging more local and international partnerships as we try to squeeze all
the juice we can get from Brand Jamaica.

Valerie Veirq, CD, JP
Chief Executive Officer
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PERFORMANCE REPORT

Throughout the 2019-2020 fiscal year, the JBDC continued
to implement major programmes which were strategically
aligned to the impact objectives and success indicators.
The main highlights were:

1. Promoting the Expansion of the Business Sector—The team
continued the thrust fowards formalisation of the business
sector as well as the enhancement of new industries/
opportunities and entry to new industries. It is important to
note the growth in our clientele from the Fashion/Apparel
and Agro-Processing sectors, both accounting for 9% each,
up from 5.2% and 5.7% respectively in the previous fiscal
year. A significant new programme offered by the JBDC
Incubator & Resource Centre (IRC) was Design Fusion,
a design-based 3-month long business development
programme for emerging fashion and gift & craft designers.
The programme is designed to meet the following objectives:

* Increased competitiveness through enhanced business enfrepreneurial capabilities
* Enhanced design and technical capabilities
* Increased capacity of designers to develop market ready collections.

The programme saw significant interest from the targeted design communities with some 148
applications processed from which 30 were selected for participation. Design Fusion further
underscores JBDC's commitment to the development of the Cultural & Creative Industries and
the growth of entrepreneurial pursuits therein as highlighted in our Small Business Exposition and
Conference 2019 which focused on the Orange Economy. The results from the CCl Mapping
exercise will provide a framework for a long-term growth strategy for the industries.

2. Facilitating Employment Creation — Capacity building through the expansion of the
Business Monitoring Programme (BMP) is a significant strategy in, meeting our objectives.
This includes the addition of new tools and elements, Integration of mentorship element
in the BMP, provision of capacity building support through the BMP to foster business
development and growth, support of high-growth potential clients as per OECD standards
and financial literacy tfraining. Our high growth potential intervention was executed
primarily through Cohort 3 of the Accelerator Programme, which is an intensive 6-month
programme facilitating fast-paced capacity building with the objective of taking MSMEs
info new markets and/or accessing equity investment from Angels.

A total of 20 enfrepreneurs were selected from more than 50 applicants and 16 completed the
programme representing a wide range of industries. Leighton Campbell, A Cohort 2 participant
who was awarded JBDC B.O.S.S Man of the Year has a mission to help small businesses monitise
sales online — anytime, anywhere. He has managed to increase earnings by 200% in one year
since participating in the programme.

13
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3. Fostering Business Competitiveness - Part of the measurement of our success is based
on the growth of our MSMEs, such as revenue generation. As it relates to market access
through Things Jamaican™, 24,422 in customer transactions was recorded by the TJ
outlets at the end of the fiscal year. This amount represents a 13% increase in the number
of fransactions recorded at the end of the 2018/19 fiscal year. Importantly, entrepreneur’s
earning enabled through Things Jamaican™ at the end of the fiscal year was J$34.28M;
this represents an increase of approximately 6% when compared to FY 18/19.

Following the registration of our Client Management System (Neoserra CRM) as at March, 30,
2020, we are looking forward to more successes as it will enhance the team'’s capacity to deliver
impactful service to our MSMEs.

Harold Davis, JP
Deputy Chief Executive Officer
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SUMMARY OF CORE SERVICE DEPARTMENTS
BUSINESS ADVISORY SERVICES UNIT

The Business Advisory Services Unit is the first point of contact for new clients entering the JBDC. It
assesses business plans and ideas, evaluates products and outlines a plan of action for businesses
deemed ready for development and growth. The Unit uses a combination of internal and
external expertise in the areas of Business Development & Mentoring and Capacity Development
& Training. Through ground-breaking initiatives such as the JBDC Accelerator Programme,
the Business Monitoring Programme as well as supporting initiatives such as the Lunch & Learn
series and Opportunity Evening, the Business Advisory Services Unit is fransforming the business
landscape by encouraging a culture of entrepreneurship which empowers entrepreneurs to
make calculated and strategy-led business decisions which result in exponential business growth,
job and wealth creation.

The Unit's specific suite of services includes:
* Business Advice & Mentoring
 Business Plan Analysis
* Business Modelling
e Programme & Project Management
* Business training
* Assessment of entities
 Client preparation to access financing & technical support

FINANCIAL SUPPORT SERVICES UNIT

The Financial Support Services Unit facilitates financial literacy and education for our clients.
Recognising the importance of access to financing as well as appropriate financing for the sus-
tainable development of businesses and its success, the JBDC through the Financial Support
Services Unit has undertaken the task of providing a suite of services aimed at building business’
capacity and preparing them to more effectively navigate the existing financial market.

The main goal of the unit is to foster growth and development through:
* Research
* Training
 Financial Handholding
* Access to Financing
* Grant Disbursement
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TECHNICAL SERVICES UNIT

The Technical Services Unit assists clients in developing products that meet international standards.
The Unit also provides support to businesses that are seeking fo expand their spaces through
engineering services and design counselling.

The Unit's suite of services include:
¢ Product design and development
* Business incubation management
* Plant and production engineering
* Food Technology
* Customised Hands-on Workshops
¢ Prototype Development
e Branding
* Fashion and Graphic Design
* Patternmaking
¢ Packaging & labelling services

RESOURCE CENTRES

The resource centres provide services for producers in the craft, food and fashion industries. These
include: product assessment & consultation, concept product design & prototyping, product
enhancement, commercial food preparation, recipe testing & development, industry research,
fashion design, collection development, pattern making and pocket welding. The cenfres also
offer incubator services which include space rental.
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PROJECT MANAGEMENT & RESEARCH DEVELOPMENT

The Project Management & Research Development Department facilitates MSME sector devel-
opment through continuous Industry Research to identify critical needs for the MSME sector. The
Unit also assists in developing programme strategies and guides the analysis and interpretation of
industry statistics and MSME resource materials. Through strategic alliances, the Department also
sources local and international funding fo support programmes that allow stakeholders to access
training and technical upgrading.

The Department also spearheads the Corporation’s annual Employee Engagement Conference.
As an Agency of the Government of Jamaica, with a mandate to provide business develop-
ment services to MSMEs, the JBDC believes that employees are of utmost importance and are
excepftionally critical fo the success of any business. As such, the conference was developed 1o
focus on making a difference within businesses, to empower employees and to foster a culture of
engagement.

JBDC is spearheading this endeavour as our research had revealed some amount of disengage-
ment within the Jamaican workforce, a status quo, which if allowed, spells disaster for the sustain-
ability of businesses and their growth.

The Department’s suite of services include:
* Project Management Training
* Proposal Writing
e Survey Design & Questionnaire Construction
e Feasibility Studies
* Market Research
e Employee Satisfaction & Engagement Surveys

MARKETING SERVICES UNIT

Access to both the local and international market is important to the success of new consumer
products that are produced particularly by entrepreneurs in the MSME sector. The JBDC's Mar-
keting Services Unit through the Things Jamaican™ retail stores provides market access for over
500 clients who produce a range of authentic Jamaican products in the categories of art & craft,
home accents, aromatherapy, fashion and fashion accessories and food.

With three (3) branches of strategically located Things Jamaican™ retail stores, clients have the
opportunity to promote and sell their products to a wider market. Further marketing is provided
through JBDC's participation in local and international frade fairs and expos. For this process, the
clients’ products are screened and recommendations given to improve viability.

The Unit’s services include:
* Market Access (local and international)
e Product Screening & Assessment

e Retail & Distribution
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STRATEGIC IMPERATIVES
A SYNOPSIS: THE JBDC MODEL

The 2018-2021 strategic thrust of the Jamaica Business Development Corporation (JBDC) is nest-
ed in a two-fold framework predicated by 1. its development mandate of growing enterprises
through the Incubation System Model and 2. the enhancement of the ecosystem to provide a
nurturing framework for growth in the MSME sector.

In this regard, the Incubation System Model supports the growth of enterprises via a process of di-
agnostic assessments, engagement of external partners, provision of specialised solutions, results-
based capacity development, support and monitoring and evaluation.

The Business Advisory Services Department is the hub of client interactions specific to engaging
MSMEs in the navigation of JBDC's Incubation System and integration in the Corporation’s flag-
ship MSMEs growth apparatus (The Business Monitoring Programme).

The Corporation (in response to market needs, the need to diversify service offerings, has em-
barked on the development and execution of specialised solutions that are offered to public
and private sector entities. These services include but are not limited to the following:

* Business development consultancies and specialised training solutions

* Proposal writing fraining and solutions

e Research training and facilitating research process outsourcing

* Employee Engagement Conference

¢ Project management solutions

¢ Technical solutions inclusive of visual communication, industrial engineering &
product design services and food technology

The two-fold framework of development support is supported by key Departments within the
organisation and these include:

e Corporate Communications

e Human Resource and Development
* Technical Services

¢ Project Management and Research
¢ Information Technology

e Administration

The Strategic Plan for the 3-year period is therefore presented within the ambit of the two-fold
nature of the Corporation and how the order of work will be structured to contribute to high-level
natfional policy objectives, JBDC's impact objectives and indicators and the continuous delivery
of services through the provision of innovative solutions.
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OBJECTIVES

Promoting the
expansion of
the business

sector
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IMPACT INDICATORS

Formalising of the sector

Entrance to new
industries and pursuit of
new business
opportunities by MSMEs

Expansion in the
employee-base of
MSMEs

Profit and revenue

Internationalisation
growth
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PROFILE OF CLIENTS

The Jamaica Business Development Corporation has approximately 2267 active clients within
the Micro, Small and Medium-sized Enterprises (MSMEs) Sector registered in its Client Relationship
Management System (Neoserra CRM) as at March 30, 2020. The number of female clients
outweighed male clients with the split being 51% females & 49% males. As it relates to the industries
to which clients are aligned, most (15.5%) are aligned to the services sector. The second largest
proportion (13%) are manufacturers or producers followed by 12.3% who are retail dealers. Other
sectors represented and details of which are presented in the diagram below are: agriculture,
agro-processing, accommodation/food services, fashion/apparel, construction, fransportation
and warehousing, fashion/apparel, education, health care, among others.

Female
51%
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Clients by Sector FY 2019/20

Service Establishment 15.5%

Manufacturer/Producer 13.0%
Retail Trade 12.3%

Fashion/Apparel 9.0%
Agro-Processing 9.0%
Other 8.4%

Accommodation and Food Services
Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting
Professional, Scientific & Technical Services
Gifts & Crafts

Body Care & Aromatherapy

Art & Entertainment

Educational Services

Construction

Transportation & Warehousing
Health Care

Finance & Insurance

Technology

Wholesale Dealer

Real Estate

Mining

Information

Administrative and Support

Waste Management

Utilities

Research & Development
Management of Companies
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Clientsare dispersed country-wide with the largest concentration of clientslocatedin Westmoreland
(24%) followed by Kingston (20%), St. James (17%), St. Catherine (9%), Manchester (8%), St. Andrew
(7%), St. Ann (5%), Hanover (3%), Clarendon (2%) and Trelawny, St. Mary, Portland and St. Thomas
(1%) individually. The distribution of the clients is reflective of the areas in which JBDC services are
most accessible as well as the size of the MSME population in those parishes.

Clients by Parish

24%

1% 1%
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2019 - 2020 HIGHLIGHTS
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OUR REACH, CLIENT AND SERVICE PERFORMANCE

Our Reach

JBDC assisted 4,604 MSMEs during the 2019-2020
Financial Year representing a 12% decrease
over the previous fiscal year (2018-2019) during
which 5,270 MSMEs were assisted. Assistance
was provided through approximately 7,639
inferventions across the broad specfrum of 4500

JBDC's services inclusive of business advice & 2600 4604
consultation, financial advice, incubator and -

technical services, product development,
research, project management, proposal 1000

writing, fraining and development, coaching FY 2017-2018 FY 2018-2019 FY 2019-2020
and mentoring, monitoring and handholding

and marketing support.

Three Year Comparitive Review of Client
Intervention

5400 5270
5200

5000

4400

4200

Interventions Overview

The majority of JBDC's service interventions were led by its Business Advisory and
Technical Services Departments.

Interventions by Services Areas

Business Advisory Services 72.7%
Technical Services

Financial Support Services
Marketing Support Services

Small Business Development Centres

Project Management and Research

1 Interventions are classified as contacts with clients which includes but limited to: consultations and counseling
sessions, training, mentoring and coaching, product development or screening sessions, email, telephone and face

to face contacts.
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*Business Advisory - Business Advisory Services conducted 5,550 interventions accounting for the
maijority (72.7%) of inferventions administered by JBDC for the review period. Advisory services
conducted via the newly established Small Business Development Centres accounted for 274
(3.6%) interventions. Core business advisory services include: business consultation, business
development fraining, business planning and business monitoring and mentoring.

* Technical Services — The focus of JBDC's tfechnical assistance is product development inclusive
of packaging design, product design and general product and process enhancement. In this
regard, JBDC facilitated 836 technical assistance interventions during the review period, which
accounted for 10.9% of the organization’s total inferventions.

* Marketing Assistance - Through strategic marketing, clients were provided with local and
internafional market access via in-store and electronic promotion and participation in local
and international trade shows provided by Things Jamaican ™; JBDC's Marketing Unit. A total
of 317 interventions were facilitated which accounted for 4.1% of the total inferventions.

* Project Management and Research - Through its specialized service solutions, the Project
Management and Research Department facilitated 10 inferventions (accounting for 0.1% of
the overall interventions) in proposal writing which is geared tfowards medium-size and large
businesses and companies.

¢ Financial Services Support — The focus of the financial services unit is to provide specialized
support in areas of financial management, financial document preparation, etc. In this regard
the FSSU department facilitated a total of 652 interventions during the review period accounting
for 8.5% of the total interventions.

Training Performance

The JBDC conducted a series of training sessions island-wide focusing on business and fechnicall
development. Since the beginning of the review period (FY 2019-2020) approximately 1,691
MSMEs have been frained representing a 10% decrease in the number of MSMEs trained when
compared to the same period during FY 2018-2019. Likewise, the number of training sessions
hosted have been decreased from 111 to 102; representing an 8% decrease over FY 2018-2019.
Training activities incorporated a series of project-related fraining inferventions which were
conducted in collaboration with The European Union & United Nations Development and other
local development support entities including Development Bank of Jamaica during the financial
year 2019-2020.
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United Nations Development and other local development support entities including Development
Bank of Jamaica during the financial year 2019-2020.

Three Year Comparitive Review of Training
Performance

FY 2019-2020

FY 2018-2019

FY 2017-2018 2426

® No. of MSMEs Trained B No. of Training Sessions

A synopsis of the interventions delivered by JBDC during the review period are included below:
e Small Business Exposition and Conference
e Tapping into Donor Funds Proposal Writing Workshop ®
* D.LY A Creative Entrepreneurship Experience
e Lunch and Learn
* Accelerator Programme
e Financing Fridays
e B.O.S.S Man meets B.O.S.S Lady
*  Opportunity Evening
* Raising Capital
e  Kumba Mi Yabba - Jamaica Night
* Employee Engagement Conference
e  Employee Engagement Seminar
e Design Fusion



ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020

MARKET CONSULTATION

Market readiness assessments are conducted to assess the integrity of the overall design quality
and marketability of a product. These assessments are usually undertaken by the Technical
Services and Marketing Services Units. Products screened during the period ranged from gift &
craft, home accessories, and entertainment, to specialty foods, fashion and fashion accessories.
The graph illustrates the number of product screenings carried out FY 2017-2018, FY 2018-2019
and FY 2019-2020. Market screening and consultation increased by 108% when compared to
screening and consultations done in the 2018-19 FY.

Market Screening & Consultations

FY 2017-2018 FY 2018-2019 FY 2019-2020

1 Interventions are classified as contacts with clients which includes but limited to: consultations and counseling
sessions, training, mentoring and coaching, product development or screening sessions, email, telephone and face

to face contacts.
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PROGRAMMES

Export Max lll

JBDC offers technical support alongside JAMPRO and Jamaica Manufacturers and Exporters
Association (JMEA) on the committee that is responsible for the design and development of
ExportMax. The project is slated to provide development services to 50 exporters over 3 years.
JBDC will provide business development support during this period (the project is funded by MOF).

The goal of EXPORT MAX Il is fo enable businesses in the goods and non-goods sector to be
competitively positioned in external markets with viable opportunities. The role of JBDC is to
provide capacity building and business monitoring support to MSMEs in preparation for entry or
expansion in the international market.

Approximately 200 Expressions of Interest (EOIs) and 70 applications were submitted to JAMPRO.
From this number, 51 businesses were selected and recommendations for final approval submitted
to the Steering Committee, of which JBDC is a member. During the fiscal period, the following
activities were completed in preparation for project implementation which commenced in
February 2020:

o Approximately 30 of 48 beneficiaries were assessed during the fiscal period
o Beneficiaries to commence their development plans and complete outstanding
assessment by April 2020.

IGNITE Phase Il

Innovation Grant from New Ideas to Enfrepreneurship (IGNITE) Il provides technical assistance
and grants to eligible innovative start-up entrepreneurs and small businesses to assist in idea
development, commercialisation or scaling of new products/service, innovation ventures, business
models, or penetration of new markets. JBDC was selected as a Business Service Intermediary (BSI)
to facilitate grant applications and capacity building interventions under phase 3 of the IGNITE
Project. The tripartite agreement for the execution of the IGNITE project has been signed by JBDC,
DBJ and the IGNITE beneficiaries.

The JBDC severed ties with one of its three IGNITE beneficiaries due to unresolved issues stemming
from differences in opinions regarding the proposed plan for execution of the IGNITE project. The
two remaining beneficiariesin JBDCs portfolio — Jamaican Algae (JALGAE) and Jamaica Electronic
Health Records System (JEHRS) are currently receiving ssupport from Business Development Officers
for the implementation and execution of development plans.

o Beneficiaries are currently in prototype development phase.

o One year project review was held on March 9 & 18, 2020 with DBJ and IGNITE
beneficiaries. Both beneficiaries are currently undertaking prototype development
o Deadline for disbursement of funds for beneficiaries was extended by an additional

three months given the current pandemic.
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Accelerator Programme

The JBDC Accelerator Programme is an intensive 6-month programme facilitating fast-paced
capacity building with the objective of taking MSMEs into new markets and/or accessing equity
investment from Angels.

- 20 entrepreneurs were selected from a batch of 52 to commence Cohort 3 of the programme
which consisted of an intensive boot camp, complemented by strategy and financial
handholding sessions.

- Of the 20 entrepreneurs who commenced the programme, a total of 16 completed and
participated in Demo Day and Closing Ceremony which was held on November 21, 2019.

- 5 participants pitched their businesses to prospective investors/buyers; 3 pitches were made
for financing and 2 for sales.

Cohort 4

Due fo the impact of COVID-19, the Accelerator Programme has been delayed.

Design Fusion Programme

Design Fusion is a design-based 3-month programme for emerging fashion and gift & craft
designers. The programme is designed to meet the following objectives:

1.Increased competitiveness through enhanced business entrepreneurial capabilities
2.Enhanced design and technical capabilities

3.Increased capacity of designers to develop market ready collections.

Twenty three (23) participants completed the programme in December 2019 — 10 Gift & Craft and
Fashion Accessories Designers & 13 Fashion Designers. Since completing the programme, 2 of the
project participants commenced retailing their products in the Things Jamaican™ store (home
accessories, soaps and candles).

The closing ceremony for the 2019 edition of the Design Fusion Programme was held on Wednesday,
January 29, 2020 at the JBDC Incubator & Resource Centre. Discussions are currently underway to
tfrain another cohort in the upcoming fiscal year.

Things Jamaican™ E-Commerce Platform

The new Things Jamaican™ E-Commerce platform was unveiled under the theme ‘Buy Jamaica.
Click Jamaica’, at the JBDC's ‘Breakfast with the CEQ’, at the Spanish Court Hotel in Kingston, on
Thursday, March 5, 2020.

- The website reinforces the organisation’s focus on helping businesses move “From Concept
tfo Market”. The website also seeks to promote the concept of Brand Jamaica through the
culturalinfluences, which are franslated into the products the artisans and producers create.

- More than 2,000 products are being offered on the website from the current 423 clients in
the Things Jamaican™ client base. Consumers can shop for items on the website under
the categories of aromatherapy, fashion and accessories, Fi Wi (Our) Tings, Home Accents,
Nyammings, Literature, Pikni (Kids) Tings and Yaad Tings.
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TARGETS & ACHIEVEMENTS

The following provides details on the achievement of specific targets relating to enterprise level
development:
PLANNED TARGETS FOR 2019/20 KEY ACHIEVEMENTS FOR 2019/20

TRAINING TRAINING
- 60 training workshops completed - 102 training workshops completed
- 1500 clients frained in all aspects of - 1,691 MSMEs received fraining in Business
business development and Financial Management, Culinary Arts
& Agro - Processing




ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

- Plan and execute impact assessment
exercise to evaluate the extent to which
businesses have grown resulting from
JBDC's inferventions

- Plan and execute at least 3 industry specific
studies and expand client-base relative to
the number of entferprises ufilising R&D in
their operations

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT
(Internal)

- JBDC commenced itsimpact assessment
survey which will be used to measure
the effectiveness of JBDCs programmes
and service offerings. Data collection
has been completed. The survey will be
analysed and shared in the upcoming
fiscal year.

(External)

- JBDC acquired oneresearch consultancy
for the fiscal period. Two other Financial
and Technical Proposals were prepared
and submitted. However, the projects
have subsequently been postponed.

ACCESS TO FINANCING

- 300 MSMEs participating in financial
literacy interventions (handholding,
coaching, technical assistance,
consultations, training)

- Approximately $50 Million in funding
accessed by MSMEs who are a
part of the Financial Hand-holding
Programme (grants and loans)

- $50 Million in grant funding accessed
through the Tapping intfo Donor Funds
Proposal  Writing Workshop  since
inception

- $50M in private equity financing

ACCESS TO FINANCING

- 391 MSMEs accessed Financial Literacy
Interventions.

- 21 MSMEs were referred for funding during
the fiscal year. Preparatory work is sfill
ongoing to enable more MSMEs to access
funding opportunities.

- $4M in funding accessed by MSMEs via
grants. 415 MSMEs participated in financial
literacy inferventions (handholding,
coaching, technical assistance,
consultations, training)
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PROGRAMME

EXPANSION OF THE SBDC NETWORK

JBDC is currently leading the expansion of the SBDC Network in Jamaica with funding (J$30M)
provided by the Ministry of Finance. The Small Business Development Centre (SBDC) is a central and
comprehensive source of support for MSMEs. During the fiscal period, the JBDC led the expansion
of the SBDC network in Jamaica. The purpose of instituting new cenfres is to provide increased
access to the services offered by the JBDC across Jamaica. Since July 2019, approximately 12
SBDCs have been established (6 of which are external):

e Rural Agricultural Development Agency (RADA)

* Edna Manley College of the Visual and Performing Arts (EMCVP)
* University of the Technology (Utech)

e Northern Caribbean University (NCU)

* College of Agriculture Science and Education (CASE)

e Caribbean Maritime Institute (CMU)

Potential Partners
JBDC is currently in negotiation with University of the West Indies, Mona (UWI) and University Col-
lege of the Caribbean (UCC) regarding partnership opportunities.

Development of Manuals
- Technical Operational Manual - completed
- Economic Impact Assessment Model — completed
- Neossera Manual — currently in progress

Accreditation

The SBDC Network is exploring accreditation for SBDC Counsellors through the assistance of the
Organisation of American Stated (OAS) and Growth Wheel.
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Made in Jamaica. These are words that bring a sense of pride to those who have been bold
enough to use their creativity and entrepreneurial spirit to make this label go viral. They are also
senfimental to fellow countrymen and women who delight in the reality of Brand Jamaica. There
is no denying the creative genes that Jamaicans have been blessed with but not enough can
boast of successfully monetizing their creativity. In 2012, the income generated from the Orange
Economy globally was estimated at US$547 billion! This year the Small Business Expo & Conference
urged Jamaicans to squeeze all the juice they can under the theme:
Here's why:

1.It generates value and wealth

2.1t generates jobs

3.1t generates social impact!

Who would have thought that part of the response fo the development challenges of Latin Amer-
ica and the Caribbean would be in the hands of creative talents, designers, artists and entre-
preneurse Creativity as a driver of innovation can confribute to diversification as a necessary

tool for having a globally competitive knowledge-based economy. One of the areas of
development is the so-called orange economy, that is, the set of activities that, in com-
bination, allow for ideas to be transformed into goods and services whose value can
be based on infellectual property, according to the definition of the Inter-
American Development Bank (IDB).

The orange universe has two parts: 1) the cultural economy and
creative industries and, at their point of intersection, the conven-
tional cultural industries, and 2) areas of support for creativity.
With the publication of the book, The Orange Economy,
the bank focused on a phe- nomenon that awak-
ens more and more infer- est in the development
agendas of the Latin American and Caribbean
counftries. The reason: Operation of the orange
economy not only stimulates economic growth
through creating value, but also its initiatives
have become in- novative systems in priority sec-

tors for the region.

Services based on creativity generated globally, in 2012, a total of US$547
billion (Unctad) and in 2015 accounted for 29.5 million jobs, comparable to all jobs generated by
the economy of Great Britain. For Latin America and the Caribbean, the orange economy meant
1.9 million jobs in 2015, comparable to all jobs generated by the economy of Uruguay or Costa
Rica. - IDB

As with previous years, the expo was an information-filled experience with presentations in myriad
areas including Innovation, Intellectual Property Management, Marketing, Social Entrepreneur-
ship and Financing. These presentations are of inferest to every entrepreneur and were hosted in
the under the sub-theme: .

Creative Entrepreneurs benefited from presentations on topics including Animation, Artificial
Intelligence; Art, Music, Dance, Publishing among other creative disciplines. These sessions were
hosted at the under the sub-theme:
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A sea of enfrepreneurs, government and private sector partners assembled at the Jamaica
Pegasus for the 12 Annual JBDC Smalll Business Expo & Conference. The event was staged under
the theme — Monetising the Orange Economy: The Future is Creative and featured 53 exhibitors,
13 presentations by industry experts and a keynote address delivered by lan ‘Ity’ Ellis, Director of
Ellis International.

The event brought into focus 4 key areas under the Orange Economy: Performing Arts, Visual Arts,
Artificial Inteligence and Publishing. According to the Inter-American Development Bank, in 2012
the income generated from the Orange Economy globally was estimated at US$547 billion and in
2015 accounted for 29.5 million jobs, comparable to all jobs generated by the economy of Great
Britain. For Latin America and the Caribbean, the orange economy meant 1.9 million jobs in 2015.

“We believe that as the government’s leading business development service provider for MSMEs,
we have a duty fo highlight what could be the answer to Jamaica's economic development
challenges. Jamaicans are super talented and have consistently outdone themselvesin the cultural
and creative industries which make up the orange economy which is massive. However, many
have failed to monetise their creativity simply because they are not operatfing it as a business,”
said Valerie Veira, Chief Executive Officer of the Jamaica Business Development Corporation
(JBDC).

Speaking at the opening of the Expo, Miss Veira said she was heartened that partners and
entrepreneurs bought into the vision by investing their time and funds into the event. “I am
particularly pleased that Sagicor has come on board as title sponsor because funding is a major
challenge for entrepreneurs. It is the beginning of a mutually beneficial partnership and a signal
of their interest in the development of entrepreneurs within this industry. | am also pleased that the
entrepreneurs themselves have come out to learn all that we have to share,” she added.

Armed with a bag of oranges, Keynote Speaker lan ‘Ity’ Ellis had the audience in stitches for
an hour as he delivered under the theme ‘Laughing all the way to the Bank: Creativity meets
Business’. Ellis chronicled his entrepreneurial journey which began as far back as primary school
when he accompanied his mother to the corner of Orange Street in Downtown - Kingston 1o sell
her wares. “I wish my mother were here today to see me as keynote speaker at the JBDC Small
Business Expo & Conference,” said an emotional Ellis.

Continuing he highlighted that his foray into comedy began with the realisation that he would not
become a singer like other stars in the Ellis clan and the denial of his desire to be made redundant
from Island Records where he was an accountant. “If Ellis wants to leave, let him resign. So | left
after 14 years with no money,” he recounted. Since then, Ellis has played a significant role in the
family business which has released productions including Backyard Crack-up, Christmas Comedy
Cook-up, The Ity & Fancy Cat Show and the Bigger Boss. Ellis along with the other half of his
comedy duo Fancy Cat, have also been the faces of corporate campaigns for companies like
Courts and Digicel.

The JBDC Small Business Expo & Conference is held annually in May with the main objective of
educating MSMEs on areas which are crucial to their success.
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EVENTS

The JBDC staged a number of events designed to stimulate the ecosystem. Each event was stra-
tegically executed with focus on pertinent matters or industries. In most cases, the events attract-
ed entrepreneurs outside the JBDC clientele which augurs well for the agency’simage and reach.
The aim is to convert these persons to clients, so the JBDC can extend its impact, while success
becomes the norm across the MSME sector.

12TH ANNUAL JBDC SMALL BUSINESS EXPO & CONFERENCE

The 12th staging of the JBDC Small Business Expo & Conference was hosted at the Pegasus Hotel
on Wednesday, May 15, 2019 under the theme ‘Monetising the Orange Economy: The Future is
Credtive’'.

There were two main new features of the event including the hosting of an opening ceremony on
the evening of May 14 prior o the event and the inclusion of the Things Jamaican™ Kumba Mi
Yabba Creative Village. The Things Jamaican™ Kumba Mi Yabba Creative Village featured the
work of 12 Fine Artists who showcased a collection of Paintings, Drawings, Photography and other
fine art pieces.

The expo attracted 52 exhibitors, the most in the history of the event, who showcased their prod-
ucts and services in both the Grand Ballroom and Talk of the Town.

A total of 18 new exhibitors participated in 2019:

e Caribbean Asset Recovery Services

* Edna Manley College of the Visual &
Performing Arts

e Small Business Development Centre

* Blue Ember Concepts

s - s

Guest speaker, CEO of Ellis International, lan ‘Ity’ Ellis prepares to begin his presenta-

° Concepf Promoﬁons fion highlighting his entrepreneurial journey from Comedian to CEO. Not leaving his
sense of humour behind, Mr. Ellis was accompanied by a bag of oranges to highlight

. CeejArTS the Orange Economy:; the theme around which the expo was billed.

* The Craft Ppl

e Eco Smart Sip

e Jetaway Vacations

* Eden Joy

¢ QuziSu Accessories

* Events by Jar

* Tek a Charge

¢ Ellis International

¢ Jamaica Photography Society
¢ Anime Nerds of Jamaica :
* Book Industry Association of JaMAICA 1, khumba Mento Band performs at the 12ih staging of the JBDC Small Business expo
* Geovil

such as Performing Arfs, Animation and Publishing.

The event also featured over 14 speakers from both the public and private sectors. A fotal of 237
entrepreneurs attended the event.
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MICAF EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT SEMINAR 2019

The Employee Engagement Seminar is a customised event led by the JBDC and sponsored by the
Agricultural Competitiveness Bridging Project. The Seminar themed ‘Enabling Leaders for Optimall
Performance’ was aimed at empowering public sector leaders to fransform the workplace into a
facilitator of personal hopes and dreams via people-centered strategy geared towards producing
optimal business results.

The Seminar was hosted in May 2019. Approximately ninety (?0) Senior Managers from the Ministry
and its Agencies were in aftendance.

ACCELERATOR PROGRAMME LAUNCH

The third cohort of the JBDC Accelerator Programme was launched on June 4, 2019. A tofal
of 16 enfrepreneurs representing 16 enterprises participated. The Accelerator Programme is a
component of JBDC's Business Monitoring Programme which provides 6 months of intense training
and mentorship for the enfrepreneurs.

Through the Accelerator Programme, JBDC identifies, nurtures, mentors and trains Jamaican
entrepreneurs to make the MSME sector more globally competitive. Under the programme,
entrepreneurs are provided with an opportunity to expand markets, prepared to access equity
capital and given an opportunity to network with like-minded entfrepreneurs through start-up
week-ends, limited co-working spaces and training boot camps.

The programme was executed utilising a combination of entrepreneurship boot camps and
fraining sessions which covered areas such as Corporate Governance, Advisory Board/Panel,
Financial Development and Education as well as general business planning and development.

Participants in cohort 3 of the JBDC Accelerator Programme pose for a group photo with CEO of the JBDC, Valerie Veira
(front, centre) following the launch of the programme at the Kuntsford Court Hotel, Kingston in June 2019.
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DENBIGH 2019

For the third consecutive year, the JBDC presented the Ministry of Industry, Commerce, Agriculture
& Fisheries (MICAF) VIP OASIS at the Denbigh Agricultural, Industrial & Food Show during the period
August 4-6, 2019.

The booth highlighted the changing face of agriculture under the theme Orange Economy meets
the Green Economy by featuring innovative products in food, wellness and craft mainly derived
from mango, castor beans, coconut, bamboo and cannabis.

The VIP OASIS was executed under five categories:
e Jamaica Harvest & Friends
* Di Mango Bar
* Spa Jamaica
* Things Jamaican™ Pop-up Store
e Kumba Mi Yabba Creative Lab

Technical Services Manager, Colin Porter (left) welcomes Nigerian JBDC Food Technologists, Alicia Lindsay and Treanna Lindo, prepare to of-

High Commissioner, Her Excellency Janet Olisa and her husband to fer food samples made from the Things Jamaican-owned, Jamaica Harvest

the VIP Oasis at Denbigh 2019. brand. The Jamaica Harvest product line was showcased at the VIP Oasis,
hosted by JBDC on behalf of the Ministry of Industry, Commerce, Agriculture
& Fisheries at Denbigh 2019.

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT CONFERENCE

The third staging of the Employee Engagement Conference was held on October 16-17, 2019 ot
the Jamaica Conference Centre under the theme; Employee Experience 3D: Design, Develop.
Deliver.

Two events were hosted for this activity:
* CEO's Pre-conference Leadership Connection — Sept. 26
* 3rd Annual Employee Engagement Conference — Oct. 16-17
The event featured two main international speakers:
* Christine Comaford — Leadership and Culture Coach & Author — Smarttribes
* Alan Stein Jr. — World renowned Performance Coach, Leadership Expert & Author —

Raise your Game
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GLOBAL ENTREPRENEURSHIP WEEK

Global Entrepreneurship Week 2019 was held during the period, November 18-23, 2019 under the
theme ‘Creating Opportunities: Developing Economies.’

Six (6) events were hosted over the five - day period which included:
* Nov. 18 - Kumba Mi Yabba Jamaica Night
* Nov. 19 - Raising Capital — Financing the Orange Economy: Is there Cash for Creativity
* Nov. 20 - Opportunity Evening — Blue Economy Meets Green Economy: Cashing in
on Tourism & Agriculture

* Nov. 21 - Accelerator Demo Day
* Nov. 22 - B.O.S.S. Man meets B.O.S.S. Lady

* Nov. 23 - DIY Creative Entrepreneurship Experience

As indicated, each event was hosted under a sub-theme and
facilitated thoughtful conversations by a number of speakers from
both the public and private sector. x -
A total of 526 entrepreneurs were engaged during these events. CEO of Vintag oo eIV RSEng

Campbell showcases jewellery pieces and

other accessories from her product line at the

Kumba Mi Yabba Jamaica Night held as part
of GEW celebrations in November 2019.

P L #3 y i

Global Entrepreneurship Week began in 2007 and is recognised as the world's largest celebration
of innovators and job creators, who launch startups that bring ideas to life, drive economic growth
and expand human welfare. The aim is to inspire people everywhere through local, national and
global activities designed to help them explore their potential as self-starters and innovators.

CEO of JBDC, Valerie Veira (centre) poses for a picture with the newly Deputy CEO of the JBDC, Harold Davis (centre) poses for a picture with
announced B.O.S.S. Woman and Runner-up B.O.S.S. Woman for the newly announced B.0.S.S. Man and Runner-up B.O.S.S. Man for 2019.
2019. On the left is runner-up, Christal Ann Thompson, CEO of Honey On the leftis B.O.S.S. Man of the Year, Leighton Campbell, CEO of Mobile
Vera Limited and B.O.S.S. Woman 2019, Dr. Janice Fisher, a pioneer Edge Solutions and Livingston Hinds, CEO of Xtrinet Limited. Both men are
in Stem Cell work and CEO of Bioregeneration Integrated Medical past participants in the JBDC Accelerator Programme.
Centre. Both women are past participants in the JBDC Accelerator

Programme.
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LUNCH & LEARN

Two editions of the Lunch & Learn series were held during the reporting period as follows:
* June 26, 2019 - Keith Duncan, CEO JMMB Group Ltd
* October 30, 2019 — Douglas Orane, CD, JP — Former CEO, Grace Kennedy

As it is a quarterly activity, one additional session would have been held unfortunately the arrival
of the COVID-19 virus on Jamaican shores curtailed all further Lunch & Learn activities.

Lunch & Learn is an inifiative of our Business Advisory Services Unit and provides an opportunity
for growth stage entrepreneurs to interact with established entrepreneurs of like interests and
inclinations.

T

Former Chairman and CEO of Grace Kennedy, Douglas Orane (left) presents a Group CEO at the Jamaica Money Market Brokers and co-Chairman

copy of his book ‘The Business of Nation Building' to Gary Masters, CEO of Clean of the Economic Programme Oversight Committee, Keith Duncan ad-
Crew, following his presentation af the JBDC Lunch & Learn event. dresses an attentive audience at the JBDC's Lunch & Leamn event.
BREAKFAST WITH THE CEO

This event represents the last major physical event which was hosted by the corporation prior to
the covid-19 restrictions during the period under review. The 2020 edition of the ‘Breakfast with
the CEO’ was held af the Spanish Court Hotel on Thursday, March 5, 2020 under the theme ‘From
Concept to Market.’

As has become customary, the event is used to announce the JBDC's programme and initiatives
for the upcoming year. A total of 173 representatives from the private and public sector including
government officials and major decision makers were invited to be part of the event. JBDC used
the opportunity to outline plans which willimpact client interventions relating to its business advisory
services and market access services, the high point of which was the official launch of the Things
Jamaican™ E-Commerce website.

The keynote address was delivered by State Minister in the Ministry of Industry, Commerce,
Agriculture & Fisheries, the Hon. Floyd Green, MP.

. if In il
1 R By g
Number One! Following the successful staging of another Breakfast with the CEO event, CEO of the JBDC, Valerie Veira (left), Marketing Services Manager,
Janine Taylor (centre) and Deputy CEO, Harold Davis (right) shared a moment with State Minister in the Ministry of Industry, Commerce, Agriculture & Fisher-
ies, Hon. Floyd Green (2nd left) and CEO of Sagicor Bank, Chorvelle Johnson (2nd right).
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PROJECT MANAGEMENT

MAPPING OF THE JAMAICA CULTURAL & CREATIVE INDUSTRIES

The JBDC signed an Operation Alliance Agreement with the British Council to gather important
data on the Cultural and Creative Industries (CCl) in Jamaica. The objective of the mapping
exercise is fo define the creative economy and provide a guide for MSMEs within the industries to
identify business opportunities and become investment ready. The nine categories to be studied
include: Music & Entertainment Industry, Architecture & Design, Art & Craft, Film & Animation,
Performing Arts & Theatre, Fashion, Culinary, Sports and Tools of Trade & Equipment.

The mapping project commenced in January 2020 and will be carried out by CClI sector experts
from the Nordicity Team. The project also consists of an Advisory Committee comprising of CCl
sector leaders who focus on providing support in building a stakeholder network to garner the
best results within the project timeline.

The survey for the mapping exercise was rolled out in March 2020 and has been shared multiple
times with stakeholders in the CCl sector, associations, groups, as well as JBDC client databases.
The survey was slated to close on March 23, however, with the pandemic impacting the project
timelines, the survey will be extended to April 24. The project end date has now been delayed to
April 30, 2020.

In an effort to develop the research capacity of the local partners, a webinar on Conducting an
Economic Impact Assessment (EIA) was hosted by the JBDC and led by Nordicity partners. The
webinar focused on Economic Analysis and Modelling, Financial Analysis and Valuation.

NATIONAL CRAFT POLICY

The National Craft Policy was reviewed by the CEO’s office and under the directive of MICAF,
presented to the Cabinet and approved in November 2017. Further amendments were made
to this policy with inputs from other MDAs towards finalisation for subbmission to Parliament. JBDC
organised and co-hosted with the Industry Division Team of MICAF, a Validation Workshop with
Policymakers and Industry Stakeholders on May 9, 2019 to seek feedback on the final draft of the
Policy prior to submission for approval by Parliament. The Craft Policy has now been approved
by Parliament. An official launch date was scheduled for March 30, 2020. However, this has been
postponed due to the impact of COVID-19.

ACP-EU UNDP DEVELOPMENT MINERALS PROGRAMME

The ACP-EU Development Minerals Programme is a three-year, capacity building programme
that aims to build the profile, and improve the management of Development Minerals (industrial
minerals, construction materials, dimension stones, and semi-precious stones). The programme
is an initiative of the African, Caribbean and Pacific (ACP) Group of States, financed by the
European Union and the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), and implemented by
UNDP.

Through this partnership, the JBDC coordinated technical assistance and capacity building
support to 80 entrepreneurs in the Development Minerals Sector. These persons were trained in
enterprise skills, market analysis and investment promotions in Kingston, Mandeville and Montego
Bay.
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* As an outgrowth of the programme, JBDC delivered the managerial component of a
3-day Business Development training in Zambia where 25 persons were frained.

e Support is currently being provided to approximately é entrepreneurs with an emphasis on
improving their financial management and business planning capabilities.

* A consultant will be engaged to provide Financial Management Support to the MSMEs;
support will include implementation of systems and processes in an effort fo improve
effectiveness and increase the efficiency of MSME operations.

JBDC is currently in discussion with UNDP regarding phase Il of the project.

ENHANCING THE EXPORT CAPACITY OF MICRO AND SMALL AGRO-PROCESSORS USING THE
CLUSTER APPROACH

The JBDC submitted a proposal for funding to the Caribbean Development Bank under the
European Development Fund Standby Facility for Capacity Building Programme. The project
seeks to build on the achievements of the Jamaica Harvest and Spa Jamaica projects through
institutional strengthening of JBDC as well as that of micro and small agro-processing enterprises.
The project is expected to achieve the following:

(1) Expansion of the Corporation’s agro-processing facilities as well as its staff’s skill set and knowl-
edge; (2) Improving the ability of micro and small enterprises to develop innovative value-added
agro-processed products; (3) Developing the capacity of micro and small enterprises to meet
infernational certification and quality standards for export; (4) Strengthening existing umbrella
brands for the marketing and sale of goods to the EU and CARIFORUM markets through the Things
Jamaican™ e-commerce platform.

Once approved for funding, the project is expected to commence in January 2021 with a com-
pletion date of December 2023.

INTERNATIONAL TRADE CENTRE — UK TRADE PARTNERSHIP PROGRAMMES (UKTP)

The ITC is embarking on this new project (UKTP) in partnership with regional and national institu-
fions. JBDC has been identified as a key potential partner to collaborate and benefit from the
project. The aim of the project is to increase export flows from ACP countries to the UK and the EU,
creating quality jobs in those countries in the long-term.

Further discussions are to be had regarding JBDCs' involvement. The ITC project representative
was expected to visit Jamaica in March to host a series of meetings with stakeholders, however,
this engagement has been postponed due to the current health crisis.

MSME GLOBAL COMPETITIVENESS IMPROVEMENT PROPOSAL TO THE GOVERNMENT OF INDIA,
MINISTRY OF MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES

JBDC attended a meeting with the Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME), Gov-
ernment of India regarding the development of an institutional framework to support the MSME
sector infrastructure for global competitiveness in Intellectual Property Protection and Manage-
ment. The long-term objectives are to contribute to the economic development of Jamaica by
increasing the knowledge and use of Intellectual Property Management Strategies and Systems
through a Hand-holding Project that will institutionalise Capacity Building within the JBDC and ifs
clients.

An MOU is being drafted for consideration between the JBDC and the Government of India.
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HUMAN CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT

Through its Mission Statement, the JBDC pursues ‘cost-effective delivery of technical and
marketing services through highly committed, competent and motivated employees’. To this end,
the organisation consistently implements training programmes which ensure that its employees
remain adept with current trends and principles in business development. Our efforts include
internal, local and international exposure.

JBDC EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT SURVEY

Gallup was engaged by the JBDC to conduct an Employee Engagement Survey with the main
aim of identifying the factors that drive employees to perform their best and also the challenges
that exist in the workplace. Data collection was conducted during the period September
— October, 2019. The results of the survey was presented by Gallup and shared with Executive
Management & Heads of Department in November.

A committee comprising of a representative from each department was established in January
2020 and will be responsible for developing a strategic plan to address the issues emerging out of
the survey.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT RETREAT

The Senior Management Refreat was held at the JMEA Office on February 24-25, 2020; allmembers
of the management team (including Assistant Managers) were in attendance. The agency is
to host a follow-up Strategic Planning Session which will focus on finalising the strategic priority
projects for FY 2020/2021 and the SWOT Analysis for the organisation.

TRAINING

* Product Development Manager, fravelled to Bridgetown, Barbados, to parficipate in the
Cultural Heritage Project Craft Workshop. The workshop was held between March 22 & 23,
2019.

e 21 staff members participated in external and internal local training sessions/workshops
during the fiscal period.

» 2 staff members participated in a 2 day workshop (December 4-5, 2019) held in Belize for
the 3rd bi-annual network of Caribbean SBDCs Steering Committee Meeting hosted by the
Organization of American States.

* 1 staff member participatedin a Fellowship Programme which was hosted by the Department
of Economic Development and Technical Corporation Service of Chile. The programme
focused on innovative best practices of support fo MSMEs in diverse regions.

* 1 staff member participated in a 2 day workshop held in Barbados on Advancing Preferential

Treatment for Culture focusing on MSMEs in the creative industry. The workshop was a
partnership with CARIFORUM and UNESCO.
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INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

A significant aspect of capacity building involves technological infrastructure. Our stakeholders
should be assured that we have the adequate systems in place so that our team can operate
optimally. We have seen growth and greater enthusiasm among our staff members who have
been using technology to increase production fime.

We are aiming to move beyond our target goals and or objectives as we roll out projects that will
enable our clients to access services to increase their likelihood of success within our competitive
enfrepreneurial environment.

The IT Department is expected to acquire new equipment (PCs & printers) by the 2nd quarter of
FY 2020/2021. A presentation was made by a Cyber Security Firm at our Strategic Management
Retreat, which has bolstered our internal security measures in an effort to protect the organisation
against cyber threats.
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IMDEPENDENT &AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of

Jamaica Business Development Corporation
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

‘We have audited the financial s:atements of Jamaica Business Development Corporation set out on pages
4 to 52, which comprise the statement of financial pasition as at 31 March 2020, and the statements of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory ‘nformation.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Corporation as at 31 March 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash (lows {or the vear
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) and the requirements
af the Jamaican Companies Act

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intermational Standards en Auditing (15As). Our
responsibiiities under those standards are further described in the Apditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit af the Financiol Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Corporation in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics
for Professtonal Accountants {including International Independence Standards) ethics responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approariate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs and the Jamaican Companies Act, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to frawd or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Corporation's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
gaing concern basks of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Corparation or o
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

The Board of Directors is resporsible for overseeing the Corporation’s financial reporting process.

Partrore: L. WcFadare, K Wigas, SH. Acfariar, . Green-Hibben, D, Hobben
Difices in Maresgo By, Masderile and OchoRiay
B0 b a membe of BOO International Linebes, & UK comgany |imited by quarastes, snd fonms part of the eemational B0 nebwerk of ndepandant mombser i
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IMND DE TORS' REPORT (CONT'D

To the Members of
Jamaica Business Development Corporation

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 5tatements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud er error, and to issue an auditors” report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance |5 a high level of assurance, bul is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with 154s will always detect a material m'sstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
ageregate, they could reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements,

A5 part of an audit in accordance with 1545, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professicnal
scepticism throughout the audit. We also;

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dus
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from frawd is higher than for one resulting from
error, a5 fraud may involve collustor, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the awdit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, bul not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion an the effectivaness of the Corporaticen’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going zoncern basis of accounting
and, based on the awdit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
evients of conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Corporation’s ability to continue as
& going concern. I we conclude that & material uncertalnty exist, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors” report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Ouwr conclusions are based on the aodit
evidence obtained up 3 the date of our auditors' repart. However, future events or conditions

miay cause the Corporation to cease to continue as a going concemn,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whather the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
evients in a manner that presents a true and fair view,
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To the Members of
Jamaica Business Development Corporation

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other mattars, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Report on additional matters & required by the Jamaican Companies Act

We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of aur knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

In our cpinion, proper accounting records have been kept, so far as appears fram our examination of
those recards, and the financial statements, which are in agreement therewth, give the information
reguired by the lamaican Companies Act, in the manner required.

JINA

Chartersd Accountants

12 April 2021
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Hote

REVEMUE b
Dther operating income Fi
EXPENSES:

Administrative
Selling

OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT

Finance (cost)/income 10

(LOSS)PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Taxathon i1

HET (LO55)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIWE INCOME:

ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -
(Loss}/gain on defined benafit plan 14

Gain on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FOR THE YEAR

(470, 045)
(_37.312)

(507, 357)
( 25,120)
(___509)
[ 26,029)

(_26,029)

( 471)

__4n)
(26,300

2

g

370,284
79,08
469 376

(419,967)
(_28,334)

{448,301)
21,075
4,39
23,470
(_9.102)

14,368

105,526
192,792
298,318

212,684
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JAMAICA BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

HON-CLURRENT ASSETS:
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Retirement benefil assets
Rights-of-use assets

CURRENT ASSETS:
Inventories
Receivables
Short term investments
Taxation recoverable
Cash and bank balances

EQUITY AMD LIABILITIES
EQUITY:

Share capital
Capital reserve
Retained earnings

HON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Leng term Loans
Long term - deferred income
Lease liability

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables
Project liabilities
Current portion - deferred income
Current portion of long term leans
Current portion of lease liability
Taxathon

AR S b R P R R R B SRR b

31 MARCH 2020

Hote

12
13
14
15(a)

17
1B
19

20

A
2

23
15(b)

25

24
23
15(b)

=y, T

Vale

Page 5
2010 2019
5000 ‘000
335,195 343, BO7
2,190 527
791,992 282,201
5,026 .
634603 626,535
5,067 3,463
30,709 26,869
- 12,617
10, <00 9,634
49,510 89,925
_ 96, (86 152,513
Z30,£89 79,048
1 |
289,551 269,551
205 399 235,794
498 B43 525,343
90,920 94,304
a8 61
2 697 =
94,445 95,255
94,732 97,949
17,891 38,160
33 33
269 451
2,607 .
21,779 21,857
137,40 138,450
ts hehalf by
F
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rie Yeira - Director
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JAMAICA BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR EMDED 31 MARCH 2020
2020 2019
5000 "0ag
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIMG ACTIVITIES:
Met (loss)/ profit {26,029) 14,368
Items not affecting cash resources:
Depreciation 15,620 14,957
Amortisation 3,263 168
Adjustment to property, plant and equipment 155 =
Gain on foreign exchanga [ 3,221} { 770)
Deferred incoms [ i3) | 33)
Employes benefit { 471) 105,526
Interest income { 1,779) { 4,706)
Interest expense 2,868 [ 2,453)
Deferred taxation - written off - 11,798
Taxation expense " . (_2,694)
{ 3,627} 138,159
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables { 3,B40) 11,237
Inventories (o 1,604) {2,070
Taxation recoverable [ T&1) ( 160)
Project liabilities [ 20,269) 17,170
Payables [ 3,393) 18,047
Retirement benefit { 9,791) {115,506)
Taxation paid i 78) .
Cash (used in)/provided by operating aclivities (51,363) bé, 877
CASH FLOWS FROM IMVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Furchase of property, plant and equipment [ 7.363) [ 7.0%6)
Purchase of intangible assats [ 1,413) [ 502)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment . 147
Short term investments 21,617 I 198)
Interest received 1,779 4, 76
Cash provided by/ {used in) activities 14,620 [ 2,943)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINAMCING ACTIVITIES:
Long term loan repaid | 1,475) { B, ,349)
Short term loan acquired - 2,089
Short term loan repaid [ 181) [ 2,089)
Interest paid [ &92) i 48)
Payments on lease Liability [ 21.145) -
Cash used in financing activitios (&, 493) (8,397}
(DECREASE}/IMCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS { 43,236) 55,537
Exchange gain on forelgn cash Lalances 1,221 T4
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 89,925 33,624
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR (note 20) 40,910 §9. 925
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JAMAICA BUSIMESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 MARCH 2020

IDENTIFICATION AND PRINCIFAL ACTIVITIES:

(a)

()

(c)

Jamaica Business Development Corporation is a limited lability company which was
incorporated cn 3 May 2001 and domiciled in Jamaica. "he registered office of the
company is 14 Camp Road, Kingston 4.

The principal activities comprise the provision of consultancy, technical and managerial
services to producers of goods and services and the sale of craft items. The Corporation®s
operations are substantially dependent on subvention income received from the
Government of Jamaica,

The shares of the Corporation are held by the Accountant General of Jamaica (90 shares),
a corporation sole pursuant to the Crown Property (vesting) Act, 1960 and 10 shares by
the Permanent Secretary in the Ministry of Industry, Commerce, Agriculture and
Fisheries.

REPORTIMG CURRENCY:

Items included in the financial statements of the corporation are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the corporation operates ('the functional
currency” ). These financial statements are presented in Jamaican dollars, which is considered
the corporation’s functional presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIMNG POLICIES:

The principal accountirg policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are sat
out below. The policies have bean consistently applied to all the years presented. Amounts are
rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.

(al

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and have been prepared under the histarical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain properties. They are also prepared
in accordance with requirements of the Jamaican Companies ACL.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the corporation’s accounting policies. Although
thise estimates are based on management's best knowledge of current events and
action, actual results could differ from those estimates, The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are

significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4,
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JAMAICA BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 MARCH 2020

3. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D):

Y

Basis of preparation (cont'd)

Mew, reviszed and amended standards and interpretations that became effective
during the year

The corporation adopted the following new and amended standards and interpretations
as of 1 April 2019

IFRS 16, “Leases’, (effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
201%9). The new standard eliminates the classification by a lessee of lease as either
aperating or finance, Instead all leases are treated im a similar way to finance leases in
accordance with 145 17, Leases are now recorded in the statement of financial position
by recognizing a Uability for the present value of its oblization 1o make future lease
paymments withan asset (comprised of the amount of the lemse liability plus certain ather
amcunts] either being disclesed separately in the statement of financial position (within
right-of-use assets) or together with property, plant and eguipment. The most
significant effect of the new reguirements will he an increase in recognizing lease assets
and financlal labilities. An optional exemplion exists for short term and low-value
leases. The accounting by lessors will not significantly change.

Lessees will be required to remeasure the lease lability upan the occurrence of certain
events [e.g., £ change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will
generally recognize the amount of the remeassurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use assets,

Upon adoption of IFRS 16 the lessee will recognize a liability 1o make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease Liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will te required to recognize the
interest expense on the liability and the depreciation experse on the right-of-use asset.
Additional disclosures in accordance with the standard have been included in the financial
statements not2 32,

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty Over Income Tax Treatments' (effective for annual periods
beginning on er after 1 January 2019%). This IFRIC clarifies how the recognition and
measurement requirements of 1AS 12 ‘Income Taxes, are applied where there is
uncertainty over income Tax treatments. The IFRIC had clarfied previcusly that |AS 12,
nalt A% 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, applies to
accounting for uncertain income tas treatments. [FRIC 23 explains how to recognize
and measure ceferred and current income tax assets and liabilities where there is
uncertainty over thy treatments. There was no impact or the corporations financial
statements from the adoeption of this standard,
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JAMAICA BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 MARCH 2020

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES (CONT'D):

(a)

(b)

(c}

Basis of preparation (cont'd)

Mew standards, amendments and interpretations not yet effective and not early
adopted

The following new standard, amendment and interpretaticn, which is not yet effective
and has not been adopted early in these flinancial statements, will or may have an effect
on the corporation’s future financial statements:

Amendments wo 1AS 1 and 1A5 8 on the definition of material {effective for accounting
periods beginming on or after 1 January 2020). These amendments to 145 1,
‘Presentation of financial statements’, and IAS B, 'Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors’, and consequential amendments to other IFRSs: i) use
a consistent dzfinition of materiality throughout IFRSs and the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting; i) clarify the explanation of the definiticn of material; and iii)
incorporate some of the guidance in |45 1 about immaterial information, The adoption

of this standard is not expected to have a significant impact on the corporation.

The corporation assessing the impact that this standard and amendment will have on the
financial statements when it is adopted.

Forelgn currency translation

Foreign currenzy transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions.

Monetary ibems denominated in foreign currency are translated to Jamaican dollars using
the closing rate as at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising from the settlement of transactions at rates different from
those at the dates of the transactions and unrealized foreign exchange differences on
unsettled foreizn currency monetary assets and liabilities are recognized in profit or loss,

Property, plant and equipment

Iterns of property, plant and equipment are recorded at historical or deemed cost, less
accumulated depreciation.  Historical cost includes esxpenditure that is directly
attributable tothe acquisition of the items.

Land and buildng i subsequently carried at fair value, based on periodic valuations by
a professional qualified valuer, These revaluations are made with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materally from that which would be
determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period. Charges in fair value are
recognized in sther comprehersive income and accumulated in the capital reserve
except to the extent that any decrease in value in excess of the credit balances on the
capital reserve or reverse of such transaction, is recogmised in profit or loss.
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JAMAICA BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 MARCH 2020

3. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D):

(c)

()

ie)

Property, plant and equipment {cont'd)

Depreciation §s calculated on the straight line basis at such rates as will write off the
carrying value of the assets over the period of their expected useful lives. Land is not
depreciated. Dther property, plant and equipment are depreciated at annual rates as
follows:

Buildings 2Vi%
Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture and fixtures 12.5%
Office equipment 16.67%
Computers eguipment 25%
Motor vehicles 205

At the date of revaluation, the accumulated depreciation on the revalued freehold
property is eliminated against the gross carmying amount of the asset and the net amount
is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. The excess depreciation on revalued
freshold buildings, over the amount that would have been charged on a historical cost
basis, is transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings when freehold
land and buildings are expensed through the statement of comprehensive income (e.g.
through depreciation, impairment), On disposal of the asset the balance of the
revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

Gains and loszes on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with rr'_-.nrrg

:lrnmnnh: !l"u"l Al |r||"| wlad |'r| nrnrﬂ' or | |r|-||:l|.- e dicmncal ﬂ‘F r\||:|1.l:|||1.|:|ri acecote

SEEE LR L) it Tl el i L b B bd Sheli Ly
capital reserves relating to these assets are transferred to retained turmr.'rgs-
Intangible assets

Acquired compater software is capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acguire
and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised on the basis of the
expected useful life of three years,

Impairment of non-current assets

Property, plantand equipment and other non-current assets are reviewed for impairment
losses whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may nat be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which Is the greater of an
asset's net sellitg price and value inuse. For the purpase of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separatey identified cash flows. Mon
financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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JAMAICA BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 MARCH 2020

SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D):

{f)

Financial instruments

& financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to koth a financial asset in one
entity and a financial liability or eguity in another entity.

Financial assets

i)

Classification

The cerporation classifies all its of financial instruments at initial recognition
based on their contractual terms and the business model for managing the
instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value,
excepl in the case of financial assets recorded at FYPL, transaction costs are
added to, or subtracted from, this amount,

The corporation classifies its financial assets as those measured at amortised
cost and fair value through profit or loss,

Amortised cost

These assets arise principally from the provision of goods and services to
custorers (eg. trade receivables), but also incorporate other types of financial
assets where the chjective is to hold these assets inorder to collect contractual
cash flaws and the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPP1). They are inftially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs

that are directly attributable to their acguisition or issue and are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interes: rate method, less provision

for impairment.

The corporation’s financial assets measured at amartised cost comprize trade
and other receivables, short term deposits and cash and cash equivalents in Lhe
statemznt of financial position.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair vaue. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term deposits with
original maturities of three months or less.

Fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

The comporation has made an irrevocable election o classify its investments at
fair value through profit or loss rather than through other comprehensive income
as the corporation considers this measurement to be the most representative of
the business model for those assets. They are carried at fair value with changes
in fair value recognized in profit or loss.
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3. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTIHG POLICIES (CONT'D):
it} Financial instruments {cont"d)

Financial assets {cont'd)

(if)

{iii)

Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are initially recognized on the settlement date, which is the
date that an asset is delivered to the corporation. This includes regular
purchases of financial assels that require delivery of assets within the time
frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place,

The corporation derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive
the cotractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or it
neither transfers nor retains all or substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownerthip and does not retain control over the traisferred asset. Any interest
in such de-recognized financial assets that is created or retained by the
corporation is recognized as a separate asset or liability,

Impairment

Impairment provisions for current and non-current trade receivables are
recognsed based on the simplified approach within IFRS 9 wsing a provision
matrixin the determination of the lifetime expected credit losses (ECL).

During this process the probability of the non-payment of the trade receivables
i5 assesied by taking into consideration historical rates of default for each seement
of trade receivables as well as the estimated ‘mpact of forwvard locking
informatian, This prebability 15 then multiplisd by the amownt of the expected
loss arising from default to determine the lifetime ECL for the trade
receivables. For trade receivables, which are repored net, such provisions are
recorded in a separate provision account with the lzss being recognized within
the statement of profit or loss, On confirmation that the trade receivable will

not he rollactahla tha arpge carmaing wvalise of the seosr fo wrirben off aeainer e
not be colleciame, e g Ving v o7 e ASsal T Writien off Against he

associated provision,

Fimancial liabilities

The corporation’s financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of
transaction coss, and are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. At the reporting date, the following item: were classifled as financial
liabilities: long term loans and trade payables,

The corporation’s deracognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations
expire or are discharged or cancelled.
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SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D):

(2}

{h}

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are carried at original invoiced amount less provision made for
impairment of these receivables. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the corporation will not collect all

amounts due according to thE ariginal terms of the recm\rahles

Other receivasles

Other receivables are stated at amaortised cost less impairment losses, iF amy.
Current and deferred income taxKes

Current tax charges are based on taxable profits for the year, which differ from the profit
before tax reported because taxable profits exclude items that are taxable or deductible
in other years, and items that are never taxable or deductible. The corporation’s liability
for current tax is calculated at tax rates that have been enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is the tax that is expected to be paid or recovered on differences betwesan
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and the corresponding tax bases. Deferred
income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising betwesn the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when
the ['elal;ed deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

zed to the extent that i
hich the temporary dif

Deferred t
L

et L Y

seis a
[EIES IR F

t is probable that future taxable
feren

tax I'I
el s mm bl bl e ___.__l.. Sma on. 2l
WL O3 Gl e diAiTIaL Wil T ces can be utilized.

Deferred tax it charged or credited to profit or loss, exceat where it relates to items
charged or credited to other camprehensive income or equity, in which case deferred
tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income or equity.
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SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT ' D):

()

Employee benefits

[{1]

(i)

Pensicn scheme costs:
Defined benefit plans

The corporation operates a defined benefit retirement plan, the assets of which
are generally held in a separate trustee-administerad fund. A defined benefit plan
is a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit to be provided, usually
a% a function of one or maore factors such as age, years of service or compensation.
The plan is generally funded through payments ta a trustes administered fund by
emplovees and the ‘corporation determined by periodic actuarial caloulations.

Definad benefit plans surpluses and deficits are measured at:

= The fair value of plan assets at the reporting date; less

+ Plan liabilities calculated using the projected umit credit method
discounted to its present value sing yielcs available on high guality
corporate bonds that have maturity dates approsimating to the terms of
the labilities; plus
Unrecongised past service costs; less

# The effect of minimum funding requirements agreed with scheme
Lrustess,

Re-measurement of the net define obligation are recognised directly within
equity, The Re-measurements include actuarial gains and losses, return on plan
asseks finterest exclusive) and any asset ceiling effects (interest exclusive],

Service costs are recognized in profit and loss, and include current and past
service cost as well as gains and losses on curtailments.

Met interest expense (income) is recognised in profit or loss, and is calculated by
applyirg the discount rate used to measure the defined obligation (asset) at the
beginning of the annual period to the balance of the net defined benefit
obligaton {asset), considering the effects of contributions and benefit payments
during the pericd. Gains or losses arising from changes to plan benefits or plan
curtailment are recognized immediately in profit or loss,

Other emploves benefits:

Employae entitlement to annual leave and other benefits are recognized when
they accrue to employess. A provision is made for the estimated lability for
annual eave and ather benefits as a result of sendces rendered by employess up
Lo the end of the reporting period.
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3. SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTIMG POLICIES (CONT D):
) Employee benefits (cont'd)
(i1} Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee's employment is
termirated before the normal retirement date or whenever an employvees accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits,

The Corporation recoenises termination benefits when it 5 demonstrably
committed to either terminate the employment of current employees according
to a datailed formal plan without the possibility of withdrawal or to provide
termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage valuntary
reduncancy.  Benefits falling dus more than twslve (12] manths after the
statement of financial position date are discounted to present value.

(k) Loans recefvables

Loans are recognized when cash is advanced to bormowers. They are initially recorded
at cost which is the cash given to originate the loan including any transaction costs, and
are subseguenily measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

An allowance for impairment s established if there is chjective evidence that the
corporation will not be able to collect all amounts outstanding according to the original
contractual terms of the loan. The amount of the allowance is the difference between
the carrving amount and the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the present
value of expected cash flows, including amounts recoverable form guarantees and
collateral disccunted at the original effective interest rate of the loans.

A loan is clasified as impaired when, in management™s opinion, there has been
deterioration in credit guality to the extent that there is no longer reasonable assurance
of timely collection of the full amount of principal and interest, If a payment on a loan
is contractually three months in arrears, the loan will be classified as impaired if not
already classifiz=d as such,

Write-offs are made when all or part of a loan is deemed uincollectible. Write-offs are
charged agains: previously established provisions for impaimment losses and reduce the
principal amownt of the loan. Recowveries, in part or in full, of amounts previously
written-off are credited to bad debt recoveries in the statement of comprehensive
mcome.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT"D):

il

[}

(nj

(c)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value, cost being determine
on a weighted average basis. Het realizable value is the estimate of selling price in the
ordinary coursa of business.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs
incurred. Bomrowings are subsequently stated at amaortised cost sing the effective
interest method. Any difference between proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the
redemption value is recognized in profit or loss along with regular interest charges aver
the period of the borrowings.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the corporation has a present legal or constructive
abligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an cutflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has heen reliably estimated,

Provisions are not recognized for fulure operating losses,

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an cutflow will be
required in setilement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected to be required
to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of

the time value of money and the risks specific to the obleation. The increase in the
provision due ta passage of time is recognized as interest expense,

Revenue recognition

Subvention income -

Subvention income for recurrent expenditure is recognized on the accrual basis.

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised at a point in time in the amount of the price, before Lax on sales,
expected to be received by the corporation for goods supplied as a result of their
ordinary activities, as contractual performance abligations are fulfilled, and control

of goods passes to the customer. Revenue is decreased by any trade discounts
granted to customers.
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3. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D):
(o) Revenue recognition (cont'd)

For contracts that permit return of goods, revenue is recognised to the extent that it
is highly probasle that a significant reversal will not occur,

The right to recover returned goods is measured at the former carrying amount of
inventory less any expected cost to recover,

Imterest income

Interest incom= is recognised in profit or loss using the effactive interest method, The
"effective interest rate" 1s the rate that exactly discount: the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial instruments to its gross carmying
amoumnt.

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments, the corporation
estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument,

but mot ECL.
(p) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributed to the
issue of ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from equity.

(al Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated at amortised cost.
ir] Project liahilites
Froject labiliti=s are stated at historical cost.
(s Deferred income
Subvention received and used for purchase of property, plant and eguipment are

credited to deferred income and are amortised on a straight:line basis and the expected
useful lives of the assets.



ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020

13.

Page 19
JAMAICA BUSIMESS DEVELOPMEMT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 MARCH 2020

SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTIMG POLICIES (CONT D)

{t)

ful

Right-of-use asset

AL 1 July 2019, the right-of-use assets have been initially celculated at an amount equal
to the initial value of the lease obligation. There is no impact on retained earnings. For
leases entered into, on or after 1 January 2019, the right-of-use assets will be initially
calculated at an amount equal to the initial value of the lease liability, adjusted for the
follpwing items:

i Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives recefved;

iii} Any initial direct costs incurred by the corporation;

i) An estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the site on which the asset is located,

For short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months ar less and low-value assets,
the corporation has elected to not recognize a lease obligation and right-of-use asset
and instead will recognize a lease expense as permitted under IFRS 16,

The right-of-uze assets will be depreciated wsing the straight-line from the date of
acoption to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the aset or end of the lease term
&s determined under IFRS 16. For lease entered into after 1 July 2019, the right-of-use
assets will be cepreciated from the date of commencement to the earlier of the end of
the useful life of the asset or end of the lease term.

Under IFRS 16, right-of-use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with 145 36,
Impairment of Asset which replaces the previous requiremant te recognize a provision
for onerous lease contracts under LAS 37, Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent

A558Ls.

Lease oblizgaticns
Policy applicable after 1 .ﬂ;.pril 2019

Leases are acccunted for by recognizing a right-of-use asset: and a lease liability except
for leases of low value assets and leases with a term of 12 months or less,

The lease obligation is measured at the present value of the contractual ohligation,
discounted usirg the interest rate implicit in the lease term, unless that rate is not
readily determinable, in which case the organisation will use its incremental borrowing
rate.
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i SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D):

(u]

Lease obligations (cont"d)

Policy applicable after 1 April 2019 (cont*d)

The Lease term determined by the corporation comprises:

i)

i)

i}

The non-cancelable period of lease contracts, including a rent-free period if
applicable;

Periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the corporation reasonably
certain to exercise that option;

Periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the corporation is
regsonably certain not to exercise that option,

The commencement dates of the lease begins on either deemed 1 January 2019 or the
date on which the lessor makes the underlying asset availabe for use to the corporatian,
Lease paymenis included in the measurement of the lease cbligation are comprised of
the following:

i)
ii)

i)

i)

vi)

vii)

Fixed lrase payments, including in-substance fixed payments:

Yariable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using
the index or rate at the commencement date:

Amounts expected Lo be payable under a residual value guarantee;

The exzrcize price of purchase options that the corporation reascnably certain
to exercise;

Lease payments in an option renewal pericd if the corporation reasonably certain
Lo exercise the extension option:

Panaltizs for early termination of the lease unless the corporatian is reasonably
certain not to terminate early; and

Less any incentive receivable;

Variable payments for leases that do not depend on an indes or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease obligations. The variable payments are recognized as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred. The corparation accounts for any leases
and associated non-lease components separately, as opposed to & single arrangement,
whiich is permitted under IFRS 16,
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3. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES (CONT Dj:

fu}

Lease abligatizns (cont d)
Policy applicasle after 1 April 2019 (cont'd)

Interest on the lease obligations is calculated using the effective interest method and
increases the leace ohligation while reat payvments reduce the oblipation, The leace
obligation is re-measured whenever a lease contract is modified and the lease
modification i not accounted for as a separate lease, or there is a charge in the
assessment of the exercise of an extension aption. The lease obligation s re-measured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate resulting in a
corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset or is recorded in gain or loss if the
carrying amaunt of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero or the modification
results in a reduction in the scope of the lease. The revised carrying amount is amortised

over the remaining lease term.
Policy applicable before 1 April 2019

Leases of assets under which all the risks and benefits cf ownership are effectively
retained by the lessor are classified as cperating leases, Payments made under operating
leases are chamged to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease pariad has expired, any payment
required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognized as an expense in the
period in which the termination takes place.

4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES:

Judgements and estimztes arg continually evaluated and are based on histerical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

[a)

Critical judgements in applying the corporation's accounting policies

In the process of applying the corporation's accounting policies, management has not
made any judgements that it balieves would cawse a signifizant impact on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT'D):
[{£3] Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The corporation makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estirates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carmying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

(i} Falr value estimation

A number of assets and liabilities included in the corporation’s financial
statemsnts require measurement at, and/or disclosire of fair value,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sel. an asset or pald to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Market price is used to determine fair value where an active
market (such as a recognized stock exchange) exists as it is the best evidence of
the fair value of & financial instrument.

The fair value measurement of the corporation's financial and non financial
assets end liabilities utilises market observable inputs and data as far as possible.
Imputs used in determining fair value measurements are categorized into
differest levels based on how observable the inputs used in the valuation
technique are.

The standard requires disclosure of fair value meassrements by level using the

following Tair value measerement hierarchy:

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are abservable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, a5 prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3 Imputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that i3, ulsbservable inputs).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT'D):

{b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont'd)

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on the lowest level of the
inputs used that has a significant effect on the fair value mzasurement of the item,

Transfer of itens between levels are recognized in the perisd they occur,
The corporation measures land and building {note 12) at far value.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets, such as available-for-
sale investrments, is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date.  These
instruments are included in level 1 and comprise equity instruments traded on the
Jamaica Stock Exchange.

The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are

E [P S a_a N [E—

aeeimed Lo be detenmin a5 i

lows;
The face value, less any estimated credit adjustmeants, for financial assets and liabilities
with a maturity of less than one year are estimated to approximate their fair values.
These financial assets and labilities include cash and cash sguivalents, receivables and
payables.

(i} Depreciable assets

Estimates of the uwseful life and the residual valve of property, plant and
equipment are reguired in order to apply an adeguate rate of transferring the
economic benefits embodied in these assets in the relevant periods. The
corparation applies a variety of methods in an effort to arrive at these estimates
from which actual results may vary. Actual variations in estimated useful lives
and residual values are reflected in profit or loss through impairment or adjusted
depreciation provisions.

(iii}) Income taxes

Estimates are required in determining the provisior for income tax, There are
some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain, The corporation recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
cutcome of these matters & different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the inccme tax and deferred tax
provisicns in the period in which such determinatior is made.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNHTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT DY:
[[s]] Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont'd)
(il Defined benefit assumptions

The cost of these benefits and the present value of the future cbligaticns depend
on a number of factors that are determined by actuaries using a number of
assumplions. The assumptions used in determining the net periodic cost or
income for retirement benefits include the expected long-term rate of return on
the relevant plan assets and the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions
will impact the net periedic cost or income recorded for retirement benefits and
may affect planned funding of the pension plan. The expected returm on plan
assets assumption is determined on a wuniform basis, comsidering long-term
historical returns, asset allocation and future estimates of long-term investment
returns. The corporation determines the appropriate discount rate at the end
of each vear, which represents the interest rate that should be used to determine
the present vaiue of estimated future cash outfiows expecied to be required to
seltle the retirement benefit oblipations. In dstermining the appropriate
discount rate, the company considered interest rate of high-quality Government
of Jamaica bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits
will be paid, and have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related
obligations. Other key assumplions for the retirement benefits are based on
current market conditions.

v Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance

The measurement of the expected credit loss (ECL) zllowance for financial assets
measured at amortised cost is an area that requires the use of complex moadels
and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit
behavier {2.g. the likelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses).
A number of significant judgement are also required in applying the accounting
requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

= Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk:

+ Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of
ECL.

+ Establishing the number of relative weightings of forward-looking
scenarios for each type of product/market and the associated ECL; and

s Establishing groups of similar financial zssets for the purposes of
measuring ECL.
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Page 25

The corporation is exposed through its operations to the following Tinancial risks:

Credit risk

- Fair value or cash flow interest rate risk

- Foreign exchange -isk
Other market price, and
- Liguidity risk

In common with all otier businesses, the corporation’s activities expose it to a variety of risks
that arise from its use of financial instruments. This note describes the corperation’s objectives,
policies and processes for managing those risks to minimize potential adverse effects on the
financial performance of the corporation and the methods used to measure them,

There have been no substantive changes in the corporation's expesure to financial instrument
risks, its objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks or the methods used to

meazure them from pravious periods unless otherwise stated in this note,

(a) Principal financial instruments

The principal financial instruments used by the corporation, from which financial

instrument sk arfses, are as follows:

Loan recelvables
Receivables

Cash and bank balances
Short term investments
Payables

Long tenm Loans

&
=

L
3

Financial assels

Cash and bank balances
Beceivables
Short term investrments

Tatal financial assets

Amaortised Cost

2020 209
000 $'000
49,910 29,325

8,650 3,243
28,560 93,168

Fair Value
Fair Yalue through
Profit or Loss

2020 2019
5'000 5'000

22,617

- 2617
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (CONT'D):

ib)

(c)

Financial instruments by category (cont"d) -

Financial liabilities
Fimancial liabilities

at amortised cosi

2020 2015
57000 3'00C
Lease liability : 5,394 -
Long term loam 91,189 94, B3
Trade and other payables 21,434 42,44
Total financial liabilities 118,017 137,254

Financial risk factors

The Board of directors has overall responsibility for the determination of the
corporation’s risk management objectives and policies and, whilst retaining ultimate
responsibility for them, it has delegated the authority for designing and operating
processes that snsure the effective implermentation of the abjectives and policies to the
corporation’s finance function. The Board provides polices for overall risk management,
as well as policles covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and investments of excess liguidity,

ThFr:' Board has established committees/departments for managing and monitoring risks,
as Tollows:

oyl | Y S ——
I L4

kil Fina epartment
The Fimnance Department is responsible for managing the corparation’s assets and
liabilities and the overall financial structure, It is aso primarily responsible for
managing the cash flow and liquidity risks of the corporation, The department

identifizs, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the
corparation’s operating umits.
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o FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMEWT (COMT'D):

ic) Financial risk factors (cont'd)

(i)

Audit Committes

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the
corporation’s risk management policies and procedures and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framewark in relation to the risks faced by the
corporation. The Audit Committee is assisted in &s oversight role by Internal
Audit.  Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the
Audit Committee,

The overall ebjective of the Board is to set policies that seek to reduce risk as
far as possible without unduly affecting the corporation's competitiveness and
flexibility. Further details regarding these policies are set out below:
(i) Market risk

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exclange rates.

Currency risk arises from US dollar investments, trade pavables and cash
and cash equivalents. The corporation mangges this risk by ensuring that
the net exposure in foreign assets and liabilities is kept to an acceptable
level by monitoring currency positions. The corporation further manages
this risk by holding net foreign currency assets,

Concentration of currency risk

The corporation is exposed to foreign currency risk in respect of US dollar

as follows;
2020 2019
57000 ‘000
Cash and cash equivalents 4423 22,030
Trade payables (17 222] (17, 666)
(12.E009 . 364
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5. FIHAHCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONT'D):
(£ Financial risk factors {cont*d)
{i) Marke: risk {cont'd)
Currency risk {cont"d)
Fareign currency sensitivity

The following table indicates the sensitivity of {los)/profit before taxation to
changes in foreign exchange rates. The change in currency rate below represents
managament’s assessment of the possible change inforeign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis represents outstanding foreign currency denominated trade
payablas and cash and cash equivalents, and adjuststheir translation at the year-
end fo- 6% (2019 - &%) depreciation and a 4% (2019 - 4%) appreciation of the
Jamaican dollar against the US dollar.

Effict an Effect on
Loss Profit
Change in before % Change in before
CUrrency Tax Currency Tax
RaLe 31 March Rate 31 March
2030 2020 2019 201%
4000 S 000
Currency:
LISD -t [ 768) -& 262
Uso 24 S12 4 (175}
Price rsk

Price risk 15 the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a
result of changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual instrument or its issuer of factors affecting all
instruments tradad in the market. The corporation is exposed to money market
_Fun-::l securities price risk arising from its holding of available-for-zale
investrrents,

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a finandal instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in market interact ratec

Floating rate instruments expase the corporation to cash flow interest rate risk,
whereas fixed rate instruments exposed the corporation fair value interest rate
risk.

Short term deposits and debt securities included in fair value through other
comprehensive income investments are the only interest bearing assets within

the corporation.



ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020

Page 2%

JAMAICA BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
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31 MARCH 2020

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D):

(c) Financial risk factors (cont'd)

(i}

i)

Marke: risk {cont'd)
Cash fow and fair value interest rate risk (cont"d)

Interest rate sensitivity

There is no significant exposure to interest rate risk on short term deposits, as
these deposits have a short term to maturity and are constantly reinvested at
curren: market rates.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to 2 financial instrument will fail to discharge
an chlization and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. Credit risk arises
from trade receivables and cash and bank balances,

Trade receivables

Revenve transactions in respect of the corporation’'s primary operations are
settled by cash. For its operations done on a credit basis, the corporation has
policies in place to ensure that sales of services are made to customers with an
appropriate credit histony.

Cash and bank balances

Cash transactions are limited to high credit quality financial institutions. The
corporation has policies that limit the amount of credit exposure o any one

femamedal bnetitirime
stk bEL s LR O.

Maximum exposure to cradit rizk

The mzximum exposure to credit risk is egual to the carrying amount of short
term irvestments, long and short term loan, trade and other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.

Trade receivables expected credit losses
The impairment rE;quirements of IFRS 9 are based on the Expected Credit Loss

{ECL) model. The guiding principle of the ECL madel is to reflect the general
pattern of deterioration or improvement in the credit guality of financial

instruments.
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31 MARCH 2020

B FIMAHCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT D).
(c] Fimancial risk factors (cont'd)
(i) Credit risk (cont™d)

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not have a financing
component, it is a requirement of IFRS 9 to recegnize a lifetime expected credit
loss. This was achieved in the current year by the development and application
of historical data relating to trade receivables and write-offs, as well as
forecasting payment probabilities based on historical payment patterm.

The 2(19 trade receivahles were analyzed in compliance with IFR5 9 and the
amount presented in the financial statements appears reasonable and in
complisnce with Lthe reguired standard,

The corporation expected credit losses (ECL) on trade receivables wsing a
provision matrix based on historical credit loss experience. Based on the
incurred loss analyses over delinquent accounts, the credit history, risk
profile of each customer and aging of receivables, customers were placed in
aging buckets and a default risk percentage caloilated for each bucket of

-------- The il i themy about the ECLs for trads

ek Pomaimrm ool on et plae Bpilonm s
SRR T O, s ll.lI.II.F"IIIE LS =PRSS '.I'll_l'IlI.H_J AEEFE AL LU L

receivebles as at 31 March.

2020
Gross Lifetime
Aging Carrying Amount Default Rate ECL Allowance
£'000 % 5'000
0 to 30 days 1,282 27 35
31 to 60 days 5,066 1.4 173
61 to 90 days B62 0.7 &
Ower 90 days 3631 54.4 1,977
10,641 2,191
2019
Gross Lifetime
Aging Carrying Amount Default Rate ECL Allowance
$'000 % £'000
0 to 30 days 1,051 3.8 40
31 to 60 days 1,084 1.5 16
61 to 90 days 434 0.4 1
Over 90 days 1,820 39.8 1,088
4,389 146
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 MARCH 2020

5. FIHAHCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (COMT D):
icl Financial risk factors (cont'd)
{1} Credit risk {cont"d)

The movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables were as

For s an

[eliieE

2020 2019
£'000 "Qoa
At 1 April 1,146 94
Impact of initial application of IFRS 9 . 114
Provisian for impairment 1,045 &8
213 1,146
Exposure to credit risk for loans receivable;
2020 2019
E'DDD 5"000
Agriculture 6,196 6,256
Agro-processing 1,691 1,691
Manufacturing 26,320 18,244
Service 13,295 16,437
47,502 52,625
Less: provisians for impairment A7 502) (32,625)

The creation and release of provision for impaied receivables have been
included in expenses in profit or loss. Amounts charged to the allowance account
are generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering additional
cash, Impairment estimates have been adjusted based on actual collection
patterrs,
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (CONT'D):
i) Financial risk factors {cont’d)
(i) Credit risk (cont'd)
Credit quality of loans
Credit quality of loans is summarized as follows:
2020 2019
3'000 3'000
Impaired 47,502 52,625
Less: Provision for impairment { 47,502} { 55,625)

(i)

Ligquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the corporation will be unable to meet its payment
obligations associated with its financlal labilities when they fall due, Prudent
liguidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities,

Liquidity risk management process

The corporation’s liguidity management process, as carried out within the
corporation and maonitored by the Finance Department, includes:

(i} Maonttoring future cash flows and Hguidity.

(i) Maintaining a portfolio of short term deposit balances that can easily be
liguidated as protection against any unforeseen intermuption to cash
flow,

(i) Maintaining committed lines of credit.

(iv) Optimising cash returns on investments,
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() Financial risk factors [cont d)

(i)

Liguidity risk {cont'd)

Cash flows of financial Habilities

Page 33

The rraturity profile of the corporation’s financial liabilities, based on
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

31 March 2020

Lease lability

Trade and other payables
Long term loans

Total financial liabilities
(contractual maturity
dates

31 March 2019

Trade znd other pavables
Long term loans

Total financial liabilities
{contractual maturity
dates)

Within1 1to 2 Z2tos Owerb

Year Years Years Years Total

$'000 5000 $'000 57000 000
2697 7,697 5,394
21,434 - . 71,434
34,175 - - 63,295 97,470
58,306 2,697 63,295 114,298
47,449 . 47,445
31,550 ! - 563,205 94845
3,999 e e B3,295 137,294
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 MARCH 2020

=5 FIHAHCIAL RISKE MAHAGEMERT (CONT D):
{d} Capital management
The corporation’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the corperation's
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and

benefits for other stakeholders. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital,
which the corporation defines as net operating income divided by total equity.

The corparation’s has no specific capital management strategy and |5 not exposed to
externally imposed capital requirements.

There are no particular strategies to determine the optimal capital structure. here
are also no edternal capital maintenance requirements to which the company is
subject.

b REVEHUE:
This represents subvention received from the Ministry of Industry, Commerce, Agriculture and

Fisheries,

I OTHER OPERATING IMCOME:

2000 2019

5030 5000

Fixed assels reserve 13 13
Gross profit - shops 27,267 27516
Service income 58,470 57,671
Interest income 1,779 4, 706
Miscellaneous income 52 2,166
E7.60 29,092
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g, EXPEHSES BY NATURE:
Total selling and administrative expenses -
2020 2019
5'000 00
Staff costs (note 9) 342,649 299,956
Repairs and maintenance 20,669 15,597
Legal and professional fees 11,696 12,034
Auditors” remuneration 1,800 1,400
Exibition of seminars 33,645 24,139
Insurance 2,005 1,915
Cleaning and sanitaticn 1,827 1,846
Occupancy costs 15,499 20,557
Security 7, 0b6 4,204
Advertising and promation 7,742 LY
uriiities and telecommunication 11,063 21,696
Bad debts recoverad { 4,075) [ 2,958)
Depreciation and amorisation 16,371 17,125
Amartisation 2,513 -
Travelling 5,952 3,953
Stationery and office supplies 11,387 10,867
Other expenses 8,548 B.B17
307, 357 448,301
Q. STAFF COSTS:
2030 2019
"000 5'000
Salaries, commissions and related costs TR 05 165 985
Payroll taxes - employer's portion 17,146 15,521
Pension cost [ 1,5M) [ 1,960)
Other 37309 20,410
342,649 £99.936
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10. FIMAMCE COSTS/INCOME);
1020 2019
5'000 00
Gain on certificate of deposit [ %3) { 57E)
Met foreisn exchange sain (3,221) {0y
Bank charges 1,355 1,408
interest expense 2,868 i 2,453
209 {2,393}

11. TAXATION:

fa) Taxation is based on the operating results for the year, adjusted for taxation purposes,

and comprises: -
020 2019
5000 £'000

Income tax & 25% . -

Taxation adjustment - [ 2,684)
Deferred taxation - written off - 11,796
Tawatinm rharas in inrrena chatomont = o 13
‘-“"'!""l."l"'l.-ll'l‘-ll"r WEE P Ry FRELR T e .2=Iﬂ.l‘-

(&) Reconciliation of theoretical tax charge that would arise on (loss)fprofit before tax
using the applicable tax rate to actual tax charge.

20320 2019

5'000 ‘oa

{Loss)f prafit before taxation 26,029) 23,470
Tax calculabed at 25% { 6,507) ER L

Adjusted for the effects of:

Expenses not deducted for tax purposes 10,263 4,281
Met effect of other charges and allowances [ 3.756) (10, 14%)
Deferred tazation written - off - 11,796
Taxation adiustment (_2.6%4)
Taxation charge in income statement . 2102

jch The corporation, being a fully owned Government entity’s falls within the definition of
a public body. The corporation is therefore exempt from paying Income Tax on its
income under Section 14 (i) (B) of the Income Tax Act,

The corporation is still required Lo file Income Tax retums in keeping with Section 714
of the Income Tax Act.
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31 MARCH 2020

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT D):

The corporation’s freehold land and buildings were appraised on 12 Hovember 2016, using highest
and best use principle carried out by external independent licensec real estate dealer,

The fair value of the land and buildings is a level 3 recurring fair value measurement. A
reconciliation of the apening and closing fair value balance is as follows:

020 2019
5'000 ‘000
Opening balance [level 3 recurring fair values) 332,080 139,283
Purchases - 5
Gain included in other comprehensive income
gain on property valuation = 192.792
Closing balance {level 3 recurring fair values) 332,080 232,080
INTAHGIBLE ASSETS:
Compuber Soltware Total
%000 'O00
At cost-
1 April 2008 and
31 March 2019 3,743 1,743
Additions 14113 2,413
31 March 2020 6,156 6,156
Depreciation -
1 April 2018 3,048 3,048
Charge for the year 168 168
31 March 2019 316 M6
Charge for the year 750 730
31 March 2020 3,966 3,966
Het Book Yalue -
31 March 2020 2,190 2,190
31 March 2019 327 —air
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14, POST-EMPLOYMENT BEMEFIT ASSETS:
1020 2019
000 5000

The amounts recognized in the statement of financial
position 282.2M
Amaownt recognized in the profit or loss [note 9) [ 1.571) [ 1.960)
Amount recognized in other comprehensive income 471 (105,526)

2020 101%

;;;;; h!.‘...ﬁ
The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position
are determined as follews:
Present value of funded obligations (438, 355) (368,327
Fair value of plan asseis 730,347 747,498
Limitation of asset due to uncertainty of obtaining
economic benefits in the plan - { 96,970)
Assets in the statement of financial position 491,992 282,201

The corporation participates in a defined benefit plan, which is open to all permanent employess
and administered for Jamaica Business Development Corporation by Sagicor Life Jamaica
Limited. Retirement benefils are based on the average annual eamings in the last three years
ta retirement, and death benefits on members' accumulated contributions.

The plans are valued annually by independent actuaries using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2020,

The movement in the present value of funded obligations over the year is as follows:

_2020 2019
£'000 L'000
Balance at beginning of year 368,327 158,535
Current service cost 18,528 11,365
Imterest cost 25,471 18,974
412,726 288,874

Re-measurements -
Losses from change in fnancial assumptions 43 038 28,287
Experience {gains)/losses (_21,203] 48,150
Balance carried forward ' 434,461 365,311
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POST-EMPLOYMENT BEMEFIT ASSETS (CONT D):

Page 40

The moverment in the present value of funded obligations over the year is as fallows (cont'd):

_ZIZ0

§°000
Balance brought forward 434,461
Members' contributions 15,247
Benefits paid { 13,3B5)
Purchased annuities 2,033
Balance at the end of the year 438,355

2019

5000

365,311
14,668

{ 11,918)
266

368,327

The movement in the fair value of the plan assets during the vear it as follows:

20E0
%'000
Balance at beginning of year T4T 496
Interest income 52,758
Re - measurements -
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts
included in interest income [{ BZ,494)
Members" contributions 15,247
Employer's contributions &, 691
Benefits paid [ 13,388)
Purchased annuities 2,033
Balance at end of year Z30 347

The movement on the asset ceiling during the year is as follows:

3 Qo
Balance at beginning of yvear 96,970
Interest on asset G, 7E8
Change in asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in interest expense (103, 758}

Balance at end of year

711,431
53,764

[ 2B,733)
14,668
&,020
{11,918)
266

286,201
21,465

(210,696

26,970
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14. POST-EMPLOYMENT BEMEFIT ASSETS (CONT D)
The amounts recognized in profit or loss are as follows:
2020 2019
5'000 5'000

Current service cost 18,928 11,365
Interest cost 25,4 18,974
Interest income on plan assets (52,758) [ 53,764)
Interest on effect of aset ceiling &, TEE 21,465
Total included in staff costs (L1571} (1260
The distribution of the plan assets was as follows:

2020 2020 2019 2019

Srooo % 5000 %
Pooled investment funds -
Equity Fund 210,445 e 203,141 7
International Equity Fund 4,648 12 71,097 10
Mortgage and Real Estate Fund 71,197 10 104,034 14
Fixed Income Fund 126,056 17 116,69% 16
Global Market Funds 105,268 14 92,572 11
Money Market Fund 17,949 2 35,762 5
CPl-Indexed 69,866 10 &4 760 9
Global Equities - . 16,256 2
Purchased Annuities 42,122 [ 39,261 5
Other 1,996 . 3,916 1
Balgmon mi sl af somoae FTAN OTFAT 4 " TAT AduE 4 7
LAULLS L Third ?l:ﬂl .I'..I-'I.Iz.lﬂf E !lﬂr Il-|-7'l.l |==i

The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available
on the assets underlying the current investment portfolio. Expecied yields on fixed interest
investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the end of the reporting period. Expected
returms on eguity and property investments reflect long-term real retes of return experienced in
the respective markets,

Expected contributions to the post employment plan for the year ending 31 March 2021 is

524,883,000 (2020 - $24,417,000). The actual return on the plan assets was a negative
S1B,659,000 (2019 - 534,566,000).
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POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT ASSETS (CONT'D):

Movements in the amounts recognized in the statement of financial position:

2020 2019

S 000 SrO00
Assets at beginning of year 282,201 166,695
Amounts recognized in the income statement (Mote 107 1,571 1,960
Re - measurements recognized in OCI [ 47 105,526
Contributions paid 8,691 __B.020
Assats at end of year 251,993 2B 2

Taxatian in relation Lo the re-measurements recognized in OC1 is disclosed in note 11.

The principal actuarial assumptions used wera as follows:

2020 2019
Discount rate 6.5% 7.0%
Inflation rate 3.0% 3.0%
Future salary increases 3.0% 4.0%
Futwre pension increases L.0% LB%

Mortality assumptions are based on the American 1994 Group Annuitant Mortality (GAMS4)
table.

Plan risks

Thraugh its defined benefit pension plans, the corporation is exposed to a number of risks. The
corporation doss not use derivatives to manage its plan risks. Investments are well diversified,
such that the failure of any single investment would not have a material impact on the owerall
level of assets. Pensions are secured through the purchase of annuities. The remaining assets are
invested in segregated pocled funds, The corporation has not changed the processes wsed [o
mamnage iLs risks from previous periods.

The most significant of these plan risks are detailed below,;
(il Imvestment risk

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to Govermment
of Jamaica bond yields. If plan assets underperform in this yield, this will create a deficit.

The corporation ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset-
ability matching (ALM) framework that has been developed to achieve long term
investrments thet are in line with the oblipaticns under the pension scheme. Within this
framework, the corparation’s ALM objective 5 to match assets to the pension abligations
by investing in lang term assets with maturities that match the benefit payments as they

fall due,
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POST-EMPLOYMENT BEMEFIT ASSETS (CONT'D):

(i}

(i

[iii)

Ireastment risg {cont"d)

The corporation actively monitors how Che duration and the expected wield of the
investments ere matching the expected cash outflows arising from the pension
obligations.

Changes in bond yields

A decrease in Government of Jamaica bond yields will increase plan liability, although
this will be pa-tially offset by an increase in the return on plan assets which are linked
to debt investments,

Salary risk

The present value of the plan liabilities is calculated in refarence to the future salaries
of members. Therefore an increase in the salary of members will increase the plan's

liability,
Life expectancy

The majority of the plan's obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member,
50 increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in the plan's liabilities,

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions
is:

Impact on post-employment obligations

Changes in Increass in Decrease in
Assumption Assumption Assumption

47000 $'000
Discount rate 1% 74,176 11, 766
Future salary increase 1% 52,610 (43,B95]
Expected pensizn increase 1% 48,510 41,134)
Life expectancy 1 wear 7 72120

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all ather
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occour, and changes in some of the
assumptions may be comelated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benafit abligation
to significant actuarial assumptions the same method {present value of the defined benefit
chligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the =nd of the reporting period)

has been applied as whan calculating the pension liability recognizad within the statements of

financial position.
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15, RIGHT-0OF-USE-ASSETS:
ia) Right of use amets:
Lang
and
Building Tatal
5 3
Adoption of IFRS 16 . 7, 7539 7,539
Amortisation { 2,513) {2,513}
At 31 March 2020 5,026 5,026
{b) Lease liability
Land
and
Building Total
] 2
Adoption of IFFS 16 7,539 7,539
Lease payments 1 2.145) { 2.145)
At 31 March 2000 5,394 2,394
Less: current partion [ 2.687) (2,697}
2837 2597
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16. LOANS RECEIVABLES:
(a) Loans and advances are comprised of:

2020 _2019
5000 51000

Gross loans and advances (47,502) 52,625

Provisions for loans and losses (47,502) (32,625)

4]

<)

These represent loans disbursed to various micro and smell business owners from the
pool funds oblained for an-lending from Development Bark of Jamalca and the Micro
Imvestment Development Agency (Mote 22). Each loan bears interest at a rate of 10% per
annum and are secured by bills of sale on items that were purchased from the proceeds
of the loan.

Impairment los mn (o=

The ageing of bans and advances and the related impairment allowances at the
reporting date were as follows:

2020 2019
Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
5 - -] 2
3 months and cver past due 47, M2 47 502 52,625 52,625
47,502 47,502 52,625 52,615

Mo impairment allowance has been made for loans that are 10t past due and there were
no loans renegotiated during the year,

Specific allowances for loan losses:

_2020 2019

$'000 $'000
Balance at beginring of vear 52 615 55,238
Recovered during the year (5.123} (_1.613)
Balance at the end of the year 47 508 32685
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17. INVEMTORIES:
2020 2019
5'000 $' 000
Inventory & 468 4,176
Less: provision for slew moving (1,401) (_713)
2067 3,463
1B. RECEIVABLES:
020 2019
5000 5000
Trade recetvables (net B,650 3,243
Prepayments 1,220 1,129
GET 11,696 12,219
sundry receivables 143 0,278
30708 26,869

Trade receivables are stated net of expected credit losses of 51,827,681 (2019 - 51,7146,204).

19, SHORT TERM INVESTMENT5:

2020 2019
‘000 5000
Fair value through profit or loss
JMMB Maney Market Fund — 22617
20, CASH AHND CASH EQUINALENTS:
2010 2019
000 5000
Cash and bank balances -
Deposits and short Lemm investments 30,739 44,972
Local current accounts 14,457 27,564
Forelgn currency current accounts 4,483 17,248
Petty cash 252 141
449,910 g 97
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20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (COHT'D):
[ah Interest rate exposure -
The weighted average effective inberest rates at year-end were as follows:
200 2019
% %
Cash at bank - J% account 0.14 0.54
- 5% account 0.08 0.12
Deposits and short term investments -
- LSS - 1.60
- 15 .39 .73
21. SHARE CAPITAL:
1020 2019
5'000 "Doo
Authorised, issued and fully paid -
100 ordinary shares of no par value i 1

2. CAPITAL RESERVE:

This represent surplus an revaluation of land and building. These assets were donated to the
Corporation by the Government of Jamaica.

23, LONG TERM LOANS:

Loans are comprised as follows:

2020 2019

5000 5000

Productive Business Sclutions Limited (i) 259 451
Development of Bank of Jamaica Limited (ii) 17,625 21,099
Micro Investment Development Agency (iii) 160,000 10,000
Ministry of Finance (ivi 63,235 63,295
91,139 94, B45
Less: current portion (___289) (___451)
90,920 944,394
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LOMG TERM LOANS (CONT'D):

(i)

(i)

(i}

{iv]

This represents an agreement of US521,%01 to be paid through 36 installments of USS
608,37 for the purchase of property, plant and eguipment '

This loan was obtained for on-lending to businesses in the productive micro and small
enterprises sectors. The principal is repayable in 12 semi-anual payments commencing
December 20{9 and bears interest at a rate of 7% per annum. It is secured by a
Parlimentary Guarantee issued by the Government of Jamaica,

The Corporation received an additional disbursement of 5100 million in December 2010,
The loan was acquired for on-lending to biginesses in the productive micro and small
enterprises sectors, The principal is repayable in 8 semi-annual payments commencing
Jurwe 2012 and bears interest at a rate of 7% per annum. It is unsecured.

This loan was obtained for on-lending to businesses in the productive micro and small
enterprises sector and were disbursed to the corporation in two tranches of 520 miilion

in October 2010 and 510 million in September 2012,

The corporation refinanced the outstanding loan balance of $22.5 million in March 2013
and an extension was obtained on the repayment. The interest rate remains at 7% and
the loan will be repaid in 18 quarterly installments commencing 31 March 2013, The loan
wias to be fully repaid by June 2017,

The Ministry of Finance and the Public Service (MOFPFS) on Eehalf of the corporation and
in consultation with the Development Bank of Jamaica (DBJ) agreed to settle debt
obligation of the secured loan of 568M. The servicing of JBDCs debt obligations by the
MOFPS was effected pursuant ko section 20, subsections (1) (3) (4) of the Public Debt
Management Act 2012 (PDMA). In lght of the foregoing, JBDC is indebted to the
Government of lamaica and should be guided by the provisions of the FDMA.

DEFERRED INCOME:

020 2019
500D ‘000
Balance at beginning of year 594 927
Amortisation charge (Mate 7) (i3] (33)
361 594
Current partion 33 33
Long term portion : izs 861
361 £94
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4. DEFERRED INCOME (COMT D):

Deferred income represents grants provided by the Government of Jamaica to acquire property,
plant and equipment. These amounts were reclassified from fixed asset reserve in March 2013
ta deferred income in accordance with 1AS 20 Accounting for Govemment Grants and disclosure
of Government assistance,

25. PAYABLES:

1020 2019

5000 5'000

Trade payable 12,043 16,447
GCT withheld payable 20,204 18,979
Other payables 16,529 18,064
Accruals 45 956 44,459
34,732 22,549

26, PROJECT LIABILITIES:

2020 2019

5000 $'000

DEJ Business traiming method - 778
Development Bank of Jamaica/MSME Development Fund 2,662 FLC LY
Income Cluster 181 181
Miscellaneous 14,555 34,045
Taurism Enhamcement Fund 454 454
17,892 38,160

These represent interest free funding recelved from multilateral organizations and government
agencies. The corporation acts as facilitator to carry out specialized projects financed from these
fumds. The corporatior is in compliance with the terms of the prajects, which are stipulated in
an established Memorandum of Understanding for each project,
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BEI ATE
LA ) I

:
:
:

Transactions during tie year

Hey management compensation -

Key management incudes executive directors
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits
Payroll taxes - employer’s portion
Pension contribution

Directars’ emaluments -
Fees
Management remuneration (included in salaries above)

LEASE COMMITMENTS:

SR

28,485
236
941

264
18,771

Operating lease commtments, which are subjected to formally agreed terms at year end

expire as follows:

Within 1 year
Subsequent years (2-5)

SEGMENT INFORMATICON:

2020

$°000

qFh
547

1,523

Pl
L=
-
=0

(% 'D‘
= =

£
=)
™

The corporation is an arganization that offers consulting, technical and management services,
It also operates a shop division that offers the sale of goods and craft items.

Based on other information presented to and reviewed by the CODM, the entire operations of the

corporation are considered as one operating segment,

Financial information related to the operating segment results from continuing operations for
the period ended 31 March 2020, can be found in the statement of profit or loss and ather
comprehensive income. There are no differences in the measurement of the reportable segment

results amnd the corporation's.

Details of the segment assets and liabilities for the period ended 31 March 2020, can be found in
the statement of financial position and related notes. There are no differences in the
measurement of the reportable segment assets and liabilities and the corporation’s assets and

liabilities,

Entity-wide disclesures:

The revenue for operations can be found in the statement of comprahensive income.

The corperation does not have any customers from which revenue exceeds 10% of total revenue,
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LEASES:

The Corporation leases certain office space under lease agreement:, some of these leases are
low valued leases,

The Corparation has not recognized right-of-use assets and lease liability for these leases.
IMPACT OF COVID - 19:

The World Health Organization (WHO} declared the novel Coronavinss (COVID- 19) cutbreak and
subsequently the Jamaican Government declared Jamaica a disaster area on 13 March 2020, The
pandemic and specific measwres to coniroi iis human impact have resulted in disruptions to
economic activities and business operations. This could have negative financial effects on the
corporation, depending on factors such as the duration and spread of the outbreak and the
Eflelil:lE on the economy overall, all of which are highly uncertain and cannot be estimated
reliably.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the corparaticn is unable to determine the
full financial impact on the overall business cperations.

EFFECT OF CHANGES IM ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The corporation has adopted IFRS 16, “Leases”, for the financial year ended 31 March 2020 which
resulted in a change in the corporation’s accounting policies, The standard is adopted
retrospectively from | July 2019, however the organization has chosen not to restate
comparatives and therefore, the revised requirements are not reflected in the prior year
financial statements. The new accounting policies are disclosed in mote 3(t) and 3{u). Details of
the impact of this standard are given below,

Effective 1 January 2019, IFRS 16 has replaced 1A% 17. ‘Leases’, and IFRIC 4. Determining
whether an arrangement cantains a iease.

IFRS 16 provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring the recogmition of assets and
liabilities for all leases, together with options to exclude leases where the lease termn is 12
months or less, or where the underlying asset is of low value (US55,000). IFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lesior accounting in 145 17, with the distinction between operating leases
and finance leases being retained.,
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EFFECTS OF CHAMGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D):

Transition Method and Practical Expedients Utilised

IFRS 16 provides for certain optional practical expedients, including those related to the initial
adopticn of the standard, The corporation applied the following practical expedients when
applying IFRS 16 to leases previously classified as operating leases under 145 17:

(a)

(o)

(]

(d)

{e)

Apply a single discount rate to a portfolio of leasss with reasonably similar
characteristics,

Exclude initial direct costs from the measurement of right-of-use assets at the date of
initial application for leases where the right-of-use asset was determined as if IFRS 16
had been applizd since the commencement date;

Reliance on previous assessments on whether leases are onetous as opposed to preparing
an impairmment review under 1A% 36 as at the date of initial application; and

Applied the exemption not to recognise right-of -use assets and liabilities for leases with
less than 12 manths of lease term remaining as of the date of initial application.

Using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to
extend or terminate the lease,

A5 a lessee, the corporation previously classified leases as operating based on its assessment of
whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. Under IFRS
16, the corporation recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease liability for most leases. However,
the corporation electad not o recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for some leases
of low value assets based on the value of the underlying asset when new ar for short-term leases

with a lease term of 12 months or less.,

On adoption of IFRS 1€, the corporation recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities as

fallows:
Classification under Classification under IFRS 16 -
1AS 17 Right_-gr-use asset Lease liakility _
Operating leases Measured at an amount | Measured at the present walue of the

equal to the lease liability, | remaining lease payments, discounted
adjusted by the amouwnt of | using  the corporation’s  incremental

ary prepaid or accrued | borrowing rate as at 1 July 2019, The
lease payments. carporation's incremental borrowing rate
is the rate at which a similar borrowing
could be cb@ined from an independent
creditor under comparable terms  and
conditions. The weighted-average rate
| applied was 8%
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JAMAICA BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
HEAD OFFICE
14 Camp Road, Kingston 4, Jamaica
Tel: (876) 928-5161-5 Fax: 928-8626
Toll Free: 1-888-232-4357

INCUBATOR & RESOURCE CENTRE
Unit 10a, 76 Marcus Garvey Drive, Kingston 13
Tel: (876) 618-0605, 758-3966-8
Website: www.jbdc.net

SATELLITE OFFICES

St. James
Shop 11, 4a Cottage Road

Impact Plaza, Montego Bay
Tel: (876) 953-4477

St. Ann
St. Ann Chamber of Commerce
Pineapple Place, Ocho Rios
Tel: (876) 508-2104, 972-2629

Westmoreland
The Source CRC, Lot 224 Barracks Road
Savanna-la-mar, Westmoreland
Tel: (876) 918-1333, 550-1908

Manchester
Suite 26, RADA Building
23 Caledonia Road
Mandeville, Manchester
Tel: (876) 625-3406




